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BOARD MEETING 

December 12, 2019 
 HUNTINGTON HEALTH CENTER 

5:30 PM 
AGENDA   

1. Call to Order 
2. Approval of the November 14, 2019 Meeting Minutes (Vote Needed) 
3. Finance Committee Report for October (Vote Needed)  
4. Committee Reports (as needed) (Vote Needed)  

• Executive Committee 
• Quality Improvement 
• Fundraising  
• Credentialing/ Privileging 

1. New employee 
 Anne Fine, RN, MSN, FNP  

2. Re-credentialing and Re-privileging  
 Jessica Mitchell, Medical Assistant  
 Julia Cornwell, Dental Assistant  
 Melissa Lodzieski, NP  

• Personnel  
• Facilities  
• Recruiting, Orientation, and Nominating (RON)  
• Strategic Planning 

5. Chief Executive Officer / Senior Manager Reports 
6. Old Business 
7. New Business (Vote Needed) 

• Changes of Scope 
• Credentialing and Privileging Policy  
• Sliding Fee Discount Program  
• Financial Management Policy  
• Billing and Collections Policy  

 
8. Executive Session  
9. Adjourn  

 
 

HCHC is an equal opportunity provider. 
 

http://www.hchcweb.org/


BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
Date/Time: 11/14/2019 5:30pm 
Worthington Health Center  
 
MEMBERS: John Follet, President; Lee Manchester; Alan Gaitenby; Jenicca Gallagher (via 
teleconference); Deb Leonczyk, Treasurer; Seth Gemme; Wendy Long 
STAFF:  Eliza Lake, CEO; Frank Mertes, CFO; Michael Purdy, CCCSO; Tabitha Griswold, Executive 
Assistant  
ABSENT: Maya Bachman; Matt Bannister; Kate Albright-Hanna; Kathryn Jensen, Clerk; Nancy 
Brenner, Vice President 
 
 
Agenda Item Summary of Discussion Decisions/ 

Next Steps/ 
Person 
Responsible 
Due Date 

Review of 
Minutes 
10/29/2019 
 
 
 

John Follet called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
The minutes from the meeting of October 29, 2019 were 
reviewed. Correction made to attendance, Wendy Long was not 
present at the October 29th meeting, and correction to Finance 
Committee, Board did approve the committee report.   
 
Lee Manchester moved to approve the October Board minutes 
as amended. Deb Leonczyk seconded the motion.  
 

October 29, 
2019 Board 
minutes as 
amended were 
approved by all 
present 

Finance 
Committee 

• John Follet presented the Finance Committee report to the 
Board. John reported that the September results show 
continued operational loss but compared to past months and 
year is doing better. The overall loss was slightly improved 
due to donations, specifically a trust fund dividend that was 
dispersed in September. The trend is tracking better; cash on 
hand is still tight but bills are being paid on time. Visits for 
the medical department are more than last year, dental visits 
continue to decline. Due to the difficulties last year the 
numbers continue to recover, even though the numerous 
transitions with medical providers. Frank is working on the 
very beginnings of a budget for next year. 

The Board 
voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
finance 
committee 
report.  
 
The Board 
voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
medical and 
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- Frank presented the 990 tax form for review. The form 
contents reflects the audit report that the Board has 
already seen. No questions were presented by the Board.  

- Frank presented the medical, dental, behavioral health, 
and optometry fee schedules to the board as explained in 
the Finance Committee, with a description of the process 
through which the fees are set.  

Alan Gaitenby moved to approve the medical, dental, 
behavioral health, and optometry fee schedules as presented, 
Lee Manchester seconded the motion.   

Wendy Long moved to approve the finance report, Deb 
Leonczyk seconded the motion. 

 

dental fee 
schedule.  

CEO Report • Eliza presented brief updates for the CEO report in lieu of a 
written report. The third managers’ meeting was help last 
week where there was a brief discussion on HRSA site visit.  
The new management organizational chart was presented to 
the group. Overall the group was agreeable and supportive 
with the changes made, as there was not much discussion. An 
email as sent following that meeting to all staff informing 
them of this new change. Managers were asked to take any 
questions from staff on these changes.  

• Michael Purdy provided an update on recruitment efforts 
around medical providers, including that an MD will being 
coming to shadow Jon Liebman for a day later in the month. 
Michael reported that with the recent NPs recruited, it 
appears that all three sites will stay open. This also assumes 
that 1,000 patients from Worthington will be willing and able 
to go to Huntington for their care. There may be a need to 
hire a locum provider for Worthington this winter. Jon is 
stepping back from Medical Director role, and there is active 
recruitment for this position.  MaryLou Stuart is looking to 
step down as Dental Director, this position will be posted 
soon with a revised job description. Sheri Cheung, MD will be 
stepping up as temporary Deputy Medical Director.  

• Eliza provided a brief HRSA OSV review on Board related 
program requirements and Scope. The Form 5 A, B, and C 
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were handed out, along with the Board related program 
requirements from HRSA compliance manual.  

Executive 
Committee  

• John Follet reported that the Executive Committee met 
regarding the CEO annual evaluation process. This will 
include contacting a limited number of management staff 
to get input and for the CEO to do a self-evaluation 
meeting, instead of a report, that will have a focused 
discussion on challenges and the development plan. There 
was also some discussion on the Executive Committee 
evolving into more of a governance committee, which 
would mean increasing the committee’s scope. A Board 
self-evaluation will be discussed with in upcoming 
meetings.  

 

Recruitment, 
Orientation 
& 
Nominating 
(RON) 
Committee 

• The committee met with Eliza and developed a survey for 
the board composition plan. This survey was handed out 
and asked to return by the end of this meeting. Eliza has 
met with a prospective Board member, a patient of JPMHC 
and a professor of Spanish literature. She has forwarded 
his information to the Committee to move forward with 
recruitment.  

 

Credentialin
g/ Privileging 
Committee 

• John Follet, on behalf of the Credentialing Committee, 
presented the following employees for re-credentialing 
and re-privileging:  

 Dr. Sheri Cheung, MD  
 Franny Huberman, LICSW  
 Jaime Gogol, Medical Assistant  
 Cindy McCready, Medical Assistant  
 Joanna Martin, Nutritionist  
 Andrea Reed, LPN 

• John Follet, on behalf of the Credentialing Committee 
presented the following initial credentialing and 
privileging:  

 Wenola Tauro, Pharmacy Student  
• John Follet, on behalf of the Credentialing Committee 

presented the following re-privileging:  
 Patricia McManam, Behavioral Health  
 Dr. Warren Graham, DMD 
 Jessica Beverly, Dental Assistant  

The Board 
voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
credentialing 
and privileging 
of the entire 
slate of 
employees.  
 
Bridget Rida, 
HR Manager to 
notify 
employee(s) of 
the granted 
credentials/pri
vileges.  
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 Kiirsten Cooper, Dental Assistant  
 Dr. Emily Bowden, DMD 

 
Seth Gemme moved to approve the credentialing and 
privileging for the slate of employees. Alan Gaitenby seconded 
the motion.   

Facilities 
Committee 

• Alan Gaitenby briefly stated that a bridge has been made in 
Huntington for the foot path, that will mitigate puddling and 
icing over as the weather gets colder. The siding in 
Huntington has also been fixed.  

 

Personnel 
Committee 

• This committee has not met.   
 

Strategic 
Planning  

• This committee has not met.  Strategic Planning will begin in 
January for the creation of a new Plan for 2020-2023.  

 

Fundraising 
Committee  

• Eliza reported that while the committee has not met, she has 
been working on recruitment of the Development Director 
and has three candidates in second interviews. She is hoping 
to make an offer before Thanksgiving.  

 

Quality 
Improve-
ment/Risk 
Managemen
t Committee 

• Michael Purdy reported on the October QI committee 
meeting in Kathryn Jensen’s absence. Eye care reported that 
peer reviews were conducted with no issues found. BH 
reported on concerns with lack of a scheduling coordination 
but how that concern is being addressed with a new position 
that is currently posted. All BH patients are getting in with a 
Same Day Visit to help prioritize patients’ needs and matching 
them up with an appropriate clinician. BH referrals from 
School-based Health Center and Chester schools has 
increased, and may necessitate the need to conduct visits in 
Chester soon. Risk management discussion on staffing crisis 
was continued.  

 

Committee 
Reports 

Wendy Long moved that the committee reports be approved. 
Lee Manchester seconded the motion.  

Committee 
reports 
presented at 
this meeting 
were approved 
unanimously.  

Old Business • No old business to report.  
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New 
Business 
 
 

• The Provider Recruitment and Retention Policy was discussed 
as an outline to the HR procedure in place.  

• The Health Center Closure Policy was presented again to the 
Board with minor changes in language.  
Alan Gaitenby moved to approve the slate of policies as 
presented, Wendy Long seconded the motion.  

• Eliza presented the 2019 HCHC Community Needs 
Assessment that was developed by Marie Burkart and Eliza. 
Some challenges presented was the suppressed data in the 
Hilltowns due to the small size. Local hospital data was used, 
and split into two regions (Hilltowns and Pioneer Valley). The 
data elements that were looked at were HRSA suggested 
characteristics. The over trend shows that the Hilltowns are 
poor and unhealthy as compared to rest of the state. Chronic 
issues in Easthampton stands out and may be a quality 
improvement measure to focus on. Huntington cancer rates 
are high in breast cancer and lung cancer, as shown in 
hospitalization numbers. Smith Vocational High School 
stands out in high childhood obesity numbers as compared 
to surrounding schools. In a survey sent to patients the 
overall needs feedback were in more mental health 
education, better health insurance and transportation 
availability.  

Deb Leonczyk motioned to approve the 2019 Community Needs 
Assessment as written, and Wendy Long seconded the motion.   

 
The Board 
voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
two policies as 
presented.   
 
The Board 
voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
2019 
Community 
Needs 
Assessment.    

Executive 
Session 

Alan Gaitenby moved that the Board move to executive session 
and Seth Gemme seconded the motion.  

 

Next 
Meeting 

The meeting adjourned at 7:55pm. The next scheduled meeting 
is set for December 12, 2019 at 5:30pm in Huntington. 

 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
Tabitha Griswold, Executive Assistant 
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HILLTOWN COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY FOR BOARD MEETING December 12, 2019 

 

November 2019 Results 

 

 

 

In October 2019 we had a Net Operating Surplus of $30,653 and an overall Surplus of $31,051. This 

brought our YTD results to a Net Operating Loss to $159,845 and our overall Surplus to $89,848. 

 

The October 2019 Net Operating Surplus is $25,613 better than budget and the Overall Surplus is 

$26,011 better than budget. This is mostly due to lower than expected labor costs of approx. $33.6k.   

 

The YTD Visit and Net Revenue per visit are summarized as follows: 

 

YTD Visits Act. Bud. Over (Under) 
Budget 

Medical 15,176 14,388 788 

Dental 13,881 15,264 (1,383) 

Beh. Health 3,540 3,329 211 

Optometry 1,997 2,007 (10) 

 

 

Please see detailed statements for more information regarding balance sheet, departmental net results, 

visits and ratios. 

 

 

 

 

YTD Net Rev.  
Per Visits 

Act. Bud. Over (Under) 
Budget 

Medical $142.70 $142.92 ($0.22) 

Dental $116.05 $113.93 $2.12 

Beh. Health $88.50 $85.39 $3.11 

Optometry $87.65 $85.29 $2.36 



Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Cap Link 

YTD Oct. YTD Dec. YTD Mar. YTD Jun. YTD  Sep YTD Oct TARGET COMMENT

2018 2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 Notes on Trend

Liquidity Measures

Operating Days Cash 15                   9                     10                   5                     11                   5                     Measures the number of days HCHC can cover daily 

operating cash needs.
> 30-45 Days Not Meeting Benchmark

Current Ratio 0.94                  0.83                  0.73                  0.81                  0.96                  1.01                  Measures HCHC's ability to meet current obligations. >1.25 Not Meeting Benchmark

Patient Services AR Days 42                      36                      36                      33                      35                      36                      
Measures HCHC's ability to bill and collect patient 

receivables
< 60-75 Days Doing Better than Benchmark

Accounts Payable Days 30                      29                      33                      45                      38                      41                      Measures HCHC's ability to pay bills < 45 Days Doing Better than Benchmark

Profitability Measures

Net Operational Margin -4.1% -4.8% -9.1% -3.1% -3.1% -2.4% Measures HCHC's Financial Health > 1 to 3% Not Meeting Benchmark

Bottom Line Margin 2.9% 1.2% -8.7% -2.7% 1.0% 1.3%
Measures HCHC's Financial Health but includes non-

operational activities
> 3% Not Meeting Benchmark

Leverage

Total Liabilities to Total Net Assets 33.8% 32.6% 38.0% 34.3% 32.6% 28.5% Measures HCHC's total Liabilities to total Net Assets < 30% Doing Better than Benchmark

Operational Measures

Medical Visits 15,109              18,166              4,638                9,048                13,431              15,176              

Net Medical Revenue per Visit 146.08$           143.59$           140.35$           145.41$           146.08$           142.70$           

Dental Visits 12,953              15,537              4,272                8,681                12,376              13,881              

Net Dental Revenue per Visit 116.88$           112.76$           114.63$           115.08$           116.56$           116.05$           

Behavioral Health Visits 3,586                4,306                1,089                2,079                3,084                3,540                

Net BH Revenue per Visit 88.72$              87.74$              78.93$              89.08$              90.54$              88.50$              

Optometry Visits 1,973                2,381                592                   1,178                1,735                1,997                

Net Optometry Revenue per Visit 88.73$              86.40$              83.62$              92.71$              94.20$              87.65$              

Hilltown CHC

Dashboard And Summary Financial Results 

October 2019
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Period Ending Oct. 2019

Oct. 2019 Oct. 2019 Over (Under) YTD Total YTD Total Over (Under) YTD PY Over (Under)

Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Cur. v. PY YTD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Revenue

Patient Services - Medical 203,742                 240,910                 (37,168)                     2,165,681              2,056,361              109,320                 2,207,149              (41,468)                  

Visits 1,745                     1,668                     77                              15,176                   14,388                   788                        15,109                   67                           

Revenue/Visit 116.76$                 144.43$                 (27.67)$                     142.70$                 142.92$                 (0.22)$                    146.08$                 (3.38)$                    

Patient Services - Dental 168,360                 186,406                 (18,046)                     1,610,865              1,738,971              (128,106)                1,513,921              96,944                   

Visits 1,505                     1,628                     (123)                           13,881                   15,264                   (1,383)                    12,952                   929                        

Revenue/Visit 111.87$                 114.50$                 (2.63)$                       116.05$                 113.93$                 2.12$                     116.89$                 (0.84)$                    

Patient Services - Beh. Health 34,060                   32,625                   1,435                         313,286                 284,248                 29,038                   318,156                 (4,870)                    

Visits 456                        375                        81                              3,540                     3,329                     211                        3,586                     (46)                         

Revenue/Visit 74.69$                   87.00$                   (12.31)$                     88.50$                   85.39$                   3.11$                     88.72$                   (0.22)$                    

Patient Services - Optometry 11,596                   19,123                   (7,527)                       175,033                 171,171                 3,862                     175,067                 (34)                         

Visits 262                        215                        47                              1,997                     2,007                     (10)                         1,973                     24                           

Revenue/Visit 44.26$                   88.94$                   (44.68)$                     87.65$                   85.29$                   2.36$                     88.73$                   (1.08)$                    

Patient Services - Optometry Hardware 7,841                     7,000                     841                            77,560                   72,163                   5,397                     70,673                   6,887                     

Patient Services - Pharmacy 14,473                   16,000                   (1,527)                       110,852                 131,717                 (20,865)                  112,952                 (2,100)                    

Quality & Other Incentives 8,027                     276                        7,751                         44,910                   19,845                   25,065                   11,691                   33,219                   

HRSA 330 Grant 193,879                 180,302                 13,577                       1,489,072              1,556,464              (67,392)                  1,451,251              37,821                   

Other Grants & Contracts 88,821                   62,775                   26,046                       727,045                 640,274                 86,771                   758,669                 (31,624)                  

Int., Dividends Gain /(Loss) Investments 5,951                     2,530                     3,421                         46,918                   62,300                   (15,382)                  (5,057)                    51,975                   

Rental & Misc. Income 2,628                     2,566                     62                              26,188                   25,380                   808                        29,987                   (3,799)                    

Total Operating Revenue 739,378                 750,513                 (11,135)                     6,787,410              6,758,894              28,516                   6,644,459              142,951                 

Compensation and related expenses

Salaries and wages 482,911                 512,246                   (29,335)                     4,578,569              4,777,529               (198,960)                4,783,203              (204,634)                

Payroll taxes 36,323                   39,187                     (2,864)                       355,502                 368,370                   (12,868)                  352,298                 3,204                     

Fringe benefits 40,271                   41,659                     (1,388)                       385,925                 414,384                   (28,459)                  392,289                 (6,364)                    

Total Compensation & related expenses 559,505                 593,092                 (33,587)                     5,319,996              5,560,283              (240,287)                5,527,790              (207,794)                

No . of week days 23                           23                           -                             218                        218                        -                         218                        -                         

Staff cost per week day 24,326$                 25,787$                 (1,460)$                     24,404$                 25,506$                 (1,102)$                  25,357$                 (953)$                     

Hilltown Community Health Centers

Income Statement - All Departments
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Period Ending Oct. 2019

Oct. 2019 Oct. 2019 Over (Under) YTD Total YTD Total Over (Under) YTD PY Over (Under)

Actual Budget Budget Actual Budget Budget Actual Cur. v. PY YTD

Hilltown Community Health Centers

Income Statement - All Departments

Other Operating Expenses

Advertising and marketing 163                        350                        (187)                           8,006                     12,403                   (4,397)                    4,587                     3,419                     

Bad debt (1,816)                    5,075                     (6,891)                       117,005                 65,197                   51,808                   82,700                   34,305                   

Computer support 7,767                     6,537                     1,230                         67,350                   65,052                   2,298                     74,054                   (6,704)                    

Conference and meetings 1,371                     405                        966                            7,783                     3,729                     4,054                     3,991                     3,792                     

Continuing education 823                        3,870                     (3,047)                       26,226                   33,860                   (7,634)                    15,839                   10,387                   

Contracts and consulting 4,329                     3,470                     859                            64,200                   32,863                   31,337                   25,269                   38,931                   

Depreciation and amortization 27,651                   27,651                   -                             276,506                 276,506                 -                         186,690                 89,816                   

Dues and membership 1,878                     3,134                     (1,256)                       28,061                   30,021                   (1,961)                    26,097                   1,964                     

Equipment leases 1,501                     2,107                     (606)                           22,922                   21,031                   1,891                     21,340                   1,582                     

Insurance 2,107                     2,119                     (12)                             21,095                   21,180                   (85)                         19,417                   1,678                     

Interest 1,277                     1,336                     (59)                             13,383                   13,721                   (338)                       15,250                   (1,867)                    

Legal and accounting 4,354                     2,888                     1,467                         25,058                   27,475                   (2,417)                    26,838                   (1,780)                    

Licenses and fees 4,869                     4,660                     209                            39,716                   44,663                   (4,947)                    48,512                   (8,796)                    

Medical & dental lab and supplies 6,913                     12,100                   (5,187)                       101,023                 116,239                 (15,216)                  115,973                 (14,950)                  

Merchant CC Fees 1,368                     1,515                     (147)                           15,881                   15,118                   763                        15,251                   630                        

Office supplies and printing 3,784                     3,586                     198                            33,928                   33,851                   77                           38,125                   (4,197)                    

Postage 2,109                     1,575                     534                            13,334                   15,696                   (2,362)                    13,708                   (374)                       

Program supplies and materials 19,591                   19,500                   91                              194,376                 191,726                 2,650                     203,412                 (9,036)                    

Pharmacy & Optometry COGS 7,708                     10,340                   (2,632)                       109,501                 99,502                   9,999                     98,620                   10,881                   

Recruitment 3,187                       -                           3,187                         15,960                     900                          15,060                   340                          15,620                   

Rent 8,752                     5,538                     3,214                         78,440                   56,832                   21,608                   50,853                   27,587                   

Repairs and maintenance 14,847                   13,974                   873                            135,852                 135,063                 789                        145,838                 (9,986)                    

Small equipment purchases 5,754                     175                        5,579                         20,165                   5,349                     14,816                   6,048                     14,117                   

Telephone/Internet 13,954                   13,696                   257                            130,750                 136,886                 (6,136)                    114,620                 16,130                   

Travel 2,242                     2,280                     (38)                             20,329                   20,734                   (405)                       20,055                   274                        

Utilities 2,737                     4,500                     (1,763)                       40,407                   47,040                   (6,633)                    43,969                   (3,562)                    

Loss on Disposal of Assets -                         -                         -                             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Other Operating Expenses 149,220                 152,380                 (3,161)                       1,627,259              1,522,638              104,621                 1,417,396              209,863                 

Net Operating Surplus (Deficit) 30,653                   5,041                     25,613                       (159,845)                (324,027)                164,182                 (300,727)                140,882                 

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Donations, Pledges & Contributions 398                        -                         398                            165,419                 430                        164,989                 57,569                   107,850                 

Loan Forgiveness -                         -                         -                             -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Capital Grants -                         -                         -                             84,274                   115,234                 (30,960)                  404,993                 (320,719)                

Net Non-operating Surplus (Deficit) 398                        -                         398                            249,693                 115,664                 134,029                 462,562                 (212,869)                

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 31,051                   5,041                     26,011                       89,848                   (208,363)                298,211                 161,835                 (71,987)                  
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Medical Dental BH Optometry Total

1/1/2019 to 1/1/2019 to 1/1/2019 to 1/1/2019 to 1/1/2019 to

 10/31/2019  10/31/2019  10/31/2019  10/31/2019  10/31/2019

Revenue

Patient Services $2,165,681.00 $1,610,865.00 $313,286.00 $175,033.00 $4,264,865.00

Patient Services - Optometry Hardware $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $69,718.96 $69,718.96

Total Patient Revenue $2,165,681.00 $1,610,865.00 $313,286.00 $244,751.96 $4,334,583.96

Bad debt $63,998.00 $33,213.00 $11,215.00 $8,620.00 $117,046.00

3% 2% 4% 4% 3%

Note Bad Debt expense includes current reserves for bad debt allowances and dirrect write off.

Hilltown Community Health Centers

Bad Debt as Percent of Revenue

YTD Ending October 2019



Oct. Oct. Budget

Over (Under) 

Budget YTD YTD Budget

Over (Under) 

Budget PY YTD

Cur. v. PY 

YTD

Operating

Medical (17,065)$         (36,348)$         19,283$          (252,586)$       (427,334)$       174,748$        (170,460)$       (82,126)$     

Dental (12,735)           (6,503)             (6,232)             (155,654)         (92,701)           (62,953)           (242,958)         87,304$      

Behavioral Health 5,376               (830)                6,206              64,407            17,686            46,721            39,314            25,093$      

Optometry (8,392)             (477)                (7,915)             (11,202)           (22,884)           11,682            (1,831)             (9,371)$       

Pharmacy 11,175            14,859            (3,684)             104,681          121,944          (17,263)           109,127          (4,446)$       

Community 7,313               (4,456)             11,769            (556)                (24,406)           23,850            (23,951)           23,395$      

Fundraising (553)                 (5,147)             4,594              (32,961)           (49,635)           16,674            (57,461)           24,500$      

Admin. & OH 45,534            43,943            1,591              124,026          153,303          (29,277)           47,493            76,533$      

Net Operating Results 30,653$          5,041$            25,612$          (159,845)$       (324,027)$       164,182$        (300,727)$       140,882$    

Non Operating

Donations 1,431$            -$                1,431$            165,419$        430$                164,989$        57,569$          107,850$    

Capital Project Revenue -                   -                   -                   84,274            115,234          (30,960)           404,993          (320,719)$  

Total 1,431$            -$                1,431$            249,693$        115,664$        134,029$        462,562$        (212,869)$  

Net 32,084$          5,041$            27,043$          89,848$          (208,363)$       298,211$        161,835$        (71,987)$     

Hilltown CHC

Summary of Net Results By Dept.

October 2019

Net Results Gain (Deficit)
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Hilltown Community Health Centers

Balance Sheet - Monthly Trend Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Over (Under)

Dec Mar Jun Sep Oct Oct Oct

2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019 2019

Assets

     Current Assets

               Cash - Operating Fund 197,997$       242,277$       127,634$       247,021$       109,125$       109,960$       (835)$             

               Cash - Internally Restricted 6,152             12,404           16,974           115,136         118,323         3,902             114,421         

               Patient Receivables 945,217         1,013,085      1,003,848      1,047,726      1,103,634      950,000         153,634         

               Less Allow. for Doubtful Accounts (109,786)        (133,664)        (182,145)        (187,240)        (175,188)        (110,000)        (65,188)          

               Less Allow. for Contractual Allowances (317,200)        (351,978)        (322,364)        (341,228)        (405,338)        (325,000)        (80,338)          

               A/R 340B-Pharmacist 32,188           11,707           27,251           17,410           15,258           5,000             10,258           

               A/R 340B-State 1,827             1,827             1,827             1,827             1,827             1,827             -                 

               Contracts & Grants Receivable 69,673           63,523           135,003         103,962         131,653         65,000           66,653           

               Prepaid Expenses 14,866           20,962           71,882           30,204           26,714           8,021             18,692           

               A/R Pledges Receivable 28,828           15,360           15,360           16,360           13,610           7,500             6,110             

     Total Current Assets 869,761         895,504         895,270         1,051,178      939,618         716,211         223,407         

     Property & Equipment

               Land 204,506         204,506         204,506         204,506         204,506         204,506         -                 

               Buildings 2,613,913      2,613,913      2,613,913      2,613,913      2,613,913      2,613,913      -                 

               Improvements 911,848         929,483         929,483         929,483         929,483         911,848         17,635           

               Leasehold Improvements 1,933,674      1,933,674      1,933,674      1,933,674      1,933,674      1,933,674      -                 

               Equipment 1,288,156      1,293,868      1,293,868      1,370,069      1,370,069      1,288,156      81,913           

               Construction in Progress -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 115,234         (115,234)        

          Total Property and Equipment 6,952,096      6,975,444      6,975,444      7,051,644      7,051,644      7,067,330      (15,686)          

               Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,430,365)    (2,513,317)    (2,596,269)    (2,679,220)    (2,706,871)    (2,706,871)    -                 

     Net Property & Equipment 4,521,731      4,462,127      4,379,175      4,372,424      4,344,774      4,360,459      (15,686)          

     Other Assets

               Restricted Cash 53,713           53,721           53,748           53,780           53,789           53,712           77                  

               Pharmacy 340B and Optometry Inventory 11,811           13,494           13,540           14,723           11,466           11,909           (443)               

               Investments Restricted 6,661             7,446             7,861             8,088             8,088             6,661             1,426             

               Investment - Vanguard 227,889         258,439         267,882         268,784         274,672         290,150         (15,478)          

     Total Other Assets 300,074         333,100         343,031         345,374         348,015         362,432         (14,418)          

Total Assets 5,691,566$    5,690,731$    5,617,476$    5,768,976$    5,632,406$    5,439,102$    193,303$       

Liabilities & Fund Balance

     Current & Long Term Liabilities

          Current Liabilities

               Accounts Payable 164,918$       208,209$       299,353$       251,991$       267,858$       225,000$       42,858$         

               Notes Payable 300,000         300,000         237,270         189,963         175,563         145,000         30,563           

               Sales Tax Payable 56                  44                  66                  32                  17                  -                 17                  

               Accrued Expenses 60,334           51,693           54,879           84,056           75,640           50,000           25,640           

               Accrued Payroll Expenses 386,764         511,383         371,976         436,649         294,164         476,500         (182,336)        

               Payroll Liabilities 20,702           13,947           17,152           19,861           22,486           16,000           6,486             

               Unemployment Escrow 826                826                826                826                826                826                -                 

               Line of Credit ($100,000 Limit) -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

               Deferred Contract Revenue 120,296         143,579         123,018         112,271         94,114           120,693         (26,579)          

          Total Current Liabilities 1,053,896      1,229,681      1,104,540      1,095,650      930,668         1,034,019      (103,351)        

          Long Term Liabilities

               Mortgage Payable United Bank 167,900         163,512         159,117         154,684         153,190         153,807         (616)               

               Mortgages Payable USDA Huntington 176,837         173,542         170,253         166,912         165,766         166,707         (941)               

          Total Long Term Liabilities 344,737         337,054         329,370         321,596         318,957         320,514         (1,557)            

     Total Liabilities 1,398,633      1,566,735      1,433,910      1,417,246      1,249,624      1,354,532      (104,908)        

          Fund Balance / Equity

               Fund Balance Prior Period 4,292,933      4,123,996      4,183,566      4,351,730      4,382,781      4,084,570      298,211         

          Total Fund Balance / Equity 4,292,933      4,123,996      4,183,566      4,351,730      4,382,781      4,084,570      298,211         

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance 5,691,566$    5,690,731$    5,617,476$    5,768,976$    5,632,406$    5,439,102$    193,303$       

Current Ratio 0.83                 0.73                 0.81                 0.96                 1.01                 0.69                 
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CEO Progress Report to the Board of Directors 

Strategic and Programmatic Goals 
December 2019

 
 

 
Goal Areas and Progress Reports 

 
Goal 1: Health Care System Integration and Financing 
 
Community Care Cooperative (C3) ACO:   Over the last few weeks, members of staff have met with C3 
leadership in a number of meetings to talk about our current status and where we’re going to go in the 
next year or two with the ACO.  While we will not have the final numbers for 2018 until late 
winter/early spring 2020 (which is a typical timeline for the insurance world, evidently), we know that 
HCHC will owe C3 some money, as we exceeded our Total Cost of Care (TCOC) budget.  I will not share 
specific numbers, because they have swung so dramatically over the last six months that every time I 
share something with you, it is almost immediately obsolete.  But we know that we have certain areas 
on which we need focus in 2020, including increasing our patients’ risk scores through better coding of 
their conditions, and through a focus on specific quality measures.   
 
For 2019, the numbers are just trickling in (and won’t be finalized until March of 2021 or so), and they 
don’t look good for anyone.  MassHealth is evidently admitting that since the ACO project began in 
2018, the acuity of MassHealth patients has increased well beyond what was anticipated, so the 
budgets that they set for TCOC were much lower than they should have been, which results in losses 
for all the ACOs.  C3 is deep in negotiations with MassHealth about changing the budgets retroactively, 
so the numbers will likely all change again (see above about reporting numbers).  But I thought you 
should know how dynamic this program is, and how hard it is to know how we are really performing, at 
least financially. 
 
For 2020, we are working with C3 to develop our budget for our federal DSRIP funds, which are going to 
be reduced from the first two years.  We have talked about where to focus our efforts, and will be 
developing this plan over the next few weeks.  As our quality measures not only count for more, but 
also increase dramatically in number, there will be a real effort to ensure that we are addressing areas 
in which we see the most room for improvement.  Also in 2020, C3 will be finalizing the plan to develop 
an employee health insurance program that we could offer to our employees, and which may be 
cheaper, given the larger pool of all C3 member CHCs’ staff.  Finally, all C3 health centers will be 
transitioning to a new computer system for tracking and reporting on our C3 members – more 
disruption, certainly, but also hopefully a more useful and easier to use system. 
 
Hospital Engagement:  Frank and I recently had a call with Matt Fishman, the Partners Healthcare VP of 
Community Benefits who was instrumental in securing us the $50,000 grant from Mass General 
Hospital earlier in the year.  We wanted to thank him for his help last winter, give him an update about 
HCHC’s progress over the year in stabilizing its finances, report on the recommended changes to our 
organizational structure as a result of our operational assessment, and ask him for further financial 
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support as an investment in these efforts to create long-term sustainability.  He was very open to the 
conversation, and now has a letter outlining all of this information and asking for a further grant of 
$200,000 to support our hiring of a COO and other administrative staff.  Matt will be talking with 
Joanne Marqusee at Cooley (and I already have, as well) to ensure that she is aware of our 
conversations.  Given that Partners (which has been renamed Mass General Brigham) had a very good 
year financially, this may not be as crazy an ask as it may seem.   
 
Joanne and I are also talking about sending an Op Ed into the Gazette that discusses the changes in the 
health care system, the provider shortage, and the growing role and importance of nurse practitioners 
to creating access to care.  You may have seen the article in the Gazette about Cooley’s new practice in 
Northampton, which included an unfortunate quote about the Hilltowns, or the letter to the editor in 
response, which talk about exactly this issue, and then goes to bat for those of us working in the 
Hilltowns.  I am going to let her marketing staff, which is 100% larger than mine, take the first stab at it, 
but will make sure that our perspective is solid.  The idea is to educate patients about these changes, 
and to promote greater acceptance of NPs as PCPs. 
 
 
Goal 2: HCHC Expansion 
 
John P. Musante Health Center (JPMHC):  Just this week, we finally received a signed amendment to 
our license agreement with the Town of Amherst for the location. As you remember, this agreement 
reduced the amount of rent that HCHC must pay, in consideration of about $110,000 of improvements 
(mainly electrical) that we put into the building as a result of our construction project.  While we have 
been paying rent as if the agreement was signed, we were very aware that the auditors would require 
more than an email agreeing to the new terms, which is all we’ve had since March.  While this took 831 
days to get in our hands (or only 538 workdays), it is good for many years and extends our lease so we 
don’t have to be renegotiating terms soon. 
 
340B Pharmacy Program:  Frank continues to work with our HMA consultant, Gail Mayeaux, to expand 
our 340B program into local CVS Pharmacies.  It has not been as smooth as first hoped, but they will 
continue to ensure that it both creates more access for our uninsured patients to prescription drugs, 
and that it benefits HCHC’s bottom line. 
 
Telehealth: Jon Liebman reports that the pilot implementation of e-consults with specialists has been 
going well.  Our providers include a number of specific questions in their referrals for MassHealth/C3 
patients, and the Referrals staff forward these to ConferMed, the company that employs a number of 
specialists.  Within a couple of days, our providers have received answers to their questions, and in 
many cases the need for an in-person specialist visit has been avoided.  There are of course some 
challenges, but we are talking with C3 about how to measure the impact of this new system, and we 
will be assessing the expansion of the program to all patients, even though we would potentially have 
to pay for the consults for non-Medicaid patients.  Research has shown that this system can reduce the 
number of in-person specialist visits by 70%, which would be a huge boon for our patients, and would 
reduce the overall health care system expenses dramatically.   
 

https://www.gazettenet.com/Oxbow-Primary-Care-opens-30642505
https://www.gazettenet.com/Fine-letter-31067536
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In other telehealth news, in the new year we will continue our efforts to develop a telepsychiatry 
program.  Our Behavioral Health Director and Tabitha attended an all-day conference on setting up 
telehealth, and we need to maintain momentum as we have federal funding to develop this program. 
 
Goal 3: Improved Organizational Infrastructure 
 
Michael has continued his fantastic leadership of the effort to address our provider shortage.  As I have 
reported, we have hired five new NPs this fall, the last two of whom will start orientation and training 
next week.  We also are ironing out the final details for a locum tenens NP who will begin to work in 
Worthington in January or February, to ensure that we have enough coverage once Beth leaves at the 
beginning of February.  Our recruiter continues to look for new MDs, and has a potential candidate with 
whom he’s currently communicating.  The MD who visited Amherst last month has decided to go in a 
different direction, so we continue to look for help there.  But with the recent hires, we have tabled 
plans for closing any of the sites, and while hours are reduced in Worthington and Amherst, we see this 
as temporary until we can get another provider or two.   I was happy to hear this morning that we have 
been successful in hiring a new nurse, who has experience working with populations with behavioral 
health needs, and a new MA.  
 
In terms of the implementation of our new management structure, we have received dozens of 
resumes for the COO position, a few of which are intriguing.  Senior Management has agreed that we 
will be hiring for this position as a team, so we are developing a process to doing so.  We have received 
fewer (but higher quality, in most cases) applications for the Clinical Operations Manager position, and 
many applications for the other positions of Behavioral Health Coordinator and administrative support 
for Eye Care and the clinical departments.   Weeding through resumes and setting up interviews takes a 
lot of time, but we are excited about the future support for our operations, and therefore our increased 
efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In other news: 

- I went to the Mass Medical Society headquarters last week to receive our 2019 Massachusetts 
Health Quality Partners Award for Distinction in Empowering Patient Self-Care.  I don’t know yet 
on which specific questions on our commercial patients’ satisfaction surveys we performed well, 
but it was very nice to be recognized (you can see my head in the back left of the adult practices 
picture on the website announcement). 

- We announced to staff that we were able to negotiate a 9.5% increase in health insurance 
premiums for Health New England, which is better than the original 11.5% increase.  No other 
insurances (dental, eye, long-term disability) increased, and we will be increasing the amount 
they can put into their Flexible Savings Accounts.  Enrollment is open for the next week. 

- Rather than a holiday party that is impossible to schedule due to geographic constraints, we are 
providing all sites with a lunch next week on the best day for the highest rate of participation.  
We are also encouraging door decorating, but are not having a competition. 

- The monthly Managers Meetings continue, and are proving to be very useful forums for 
ensuring that managers have input into training schedules, for sharing information about IT 
changes, HR updates, etc, and for trainings like one provided today by Gail Mayeaux on 
negotiating difficult conversations with staff. 

 

http://www.mhqp.org/2019/12/05/mhqp-announces-winners-of-2019-patient-experience-awards/


4 
 

HRSA OSV Follow-up 
 
As you all know by now, we did very well on our Operational Site Visit.  We have been working very 
hard over the last few weeks to prepare for the “CRO” or period during which we can correct items 
before they become official, and so when we received the preliminary report on Monday, we were 
ready.  There were fewer items on the report than we had expected – evidently our protests at the exit 
interview were heard, since the Board’s lack of quorum at last March’s meeting is not mentioned.  The 
items that we need to address, many of which through votes on policies at tomorrow’s meeting, are: 

- Minor changes to the Credentialing and Privileging policy.  We have taken the opportunity, 
however, to make significant improvements to the policy based on best practice suggestions 
from Dr. Roby, the clinical reviewer.  The most significant of these addresses the timeliness of 
the credentialing and privileging process, and the fact that while we currently have Board 
members with the clinical expertise to review these files, we may not always be so lucky. We are 
therefore streamlining the process to make Michael the final approval. We hope to have this to 
you this evening or first thing tomorrow (vote needed). 

- Missing documentation in a few employee personnel files. Bridget has been collecting this 
paperwork, and we will submit it this week. 

- Changes to our processes for managing medical emergencies during hours of operation.  
Again, these are not major changes, but we need to better document the process, and then 
prove that staff have been trained on them.  This is the one area that will likely not be 
addressed before the end of the CRO period. 

- Changes to out-going phone messages after hours to ensure access to provider coverage.  
Primarily, this means changes to the After Hours policy (vote needed), and new scripts and 
recordings to ensure that all sites have directions in English and Spanish on reaching the call 
service. 

- Small changes to the Sliding Fee Discount Program policy.  Frank has made minor edits to the 
appropriate policies, which are attached (with summaries) to this report (vote needed). 

- Small changes to the Financial Management policy.  Frank has made minor edits to the 
appropriate policies, which are attached (with summaries) to this report (vote needed). 

 
The one other change that we are working on implementing, and which has implications for the Board, 
is changing the way that the Board is involved in the Quality Improvement and Risk Management 
Committee.  Dr. Roby suggested that we make this a staff-only committee that still reports monthly to 
the Board.  This would, again, address a potential future when there are not Board members with 
clinical expertise.  The QI/RM Committee will be discussing this at its meeting next week, but I wanted 
to let you know that this change is on the table at that meeting. 
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HCHC Response to Program Requirement Billing and Collections  

h-Policies or Procedures for Waiving or Reducing Fees 

 

 

In order to meet the conditions of its 330 grant, HCHC has been instructed through its OSV Final 

Report to address the following issues: 

 

- The provision for waiving fees does not address circumstances or criteria 

related to a patient’s inability to pay, regardless of the patient income levels. 

 

 

Response: HCHC has amended its policy  

 

Current policy;  

Waiving of Charges: In certain situations, patients may not be able to pay the discount fee. Waiving of 
charges may only be used in special circumstances and must be approved by HCHC’s CEO, CFO, or their 
designee. Any waiving of charges should be documented in the patient’s file along with an explanation 
(e.g., ability to pay, good will, health promotion event). 
 

 

Updated policy;  

Waiving or Reducing of Charges: In certain situations, patients may not be able to pay their fees 
regardless of the patient income levels. Waiving of charges may only be used in special circumstances 
and must be approved by HCHC’s CEO, CFO, or their designee. Examples of such special circumstances 
may include, but are not limited to, displacement of current housing due to catastrophic events such as 
fires or water damage, auto/personal injuries, or as a victim of serious crimes. 
 
Any waiving or reduction of charges should be documented in the patient’s file along with an 
explanation (e.g., ability to pay, good will, health promotion event). 
 

 

http://www.hchcweb.org/
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HCHC Response to Financial Management and Accounting Systems: 

c Drawdown, Disbursement and Expenditure Procedures 

 

 

In order to meet the conditions of its 330 grant, HCHC has been instructed through its OSV Final 

Report to address the following issues: 

 

- The drawdown procedures do not limit the drawdown amount to the minimum amount 

needed to cover allowable project costs. HCHC does not have written procedures or 

provisions to ensure that all expenditures utilizing federal award funds are allowable in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of the federal award, including those that limit 

the use of federal award funds. The drawdown procedures do not reference Federal Cost 

Principles 45 CFR Part 75 Subpart E. 

 

 

Current Language in HCHC Policy: 

 

Cash Receipts   

  

The health center receives various types of cash receipts on a daily basis.  These include payments 

received via mail or electronic transfer such as contract revenue reimbursement, contributions, 

payment on patient accounts, electronic wire transfers such as Medicaid receipts and grant draw 

downs, as well as cash from patients and other miscellaneous items.    

  

Draw downs on Federal awards must minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds 

from the United States Treasury or the pass-through entity and the disbursement by HCHC. All 

advance payments on Federal awards must be deposited and maintained in insured accounts 

whenever possible and in interest-bearing accounts unless the following applies;  

  

a)  HCHC receives less than $120,000 in Federal awards per year. b) The best reasonably available 

interest-bearing account would not be expected to earn interest in excess of $500 per year on 

Federal cash balances. c) The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high 

that it would not be feasible within the expected Federal and non-Federal cash resources. d) A 

foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest bearing accounts.  

  

Cash receipts procedures are established to insure that receipts are adequately safeguarded and 

properly deposited, that all receipts are properly recorded in the patient accounting records, and 

that receipts are identified in sufficient detail to facilitate preparation of the monthly financial 

reports.  

  

Amounts received and prepared deposits are held in a locked cabinet at all times and deposits are 

made at least once weekly and more often when practical. 

 

 

Response: HCHC has amended as follows; 

 

Cash Receipts   

  

The health center receives various types of cash receipts on a daily basis.  These include payments 

http://www.hchcweb.org/
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received via mail or electronic transfer such as contract revenue reimbursement, contributions, 

payment on patient accounts, electronic wire transfers such as Medicaid receipts and grant 

drawdowns, as well as cash from patients and other miscellaneous items.    

  

Drawdowns on Federal awards must; 

1. Be done in manner that minimizes the time elapsing between the transfer of the Federal 

award funds from HRSA and the disbursement of these funds by the HCHC. 

2. Be used for expenditures that are allowable in accordance with the terms and conditions of 

the Federal award and with the Federal Cost Principles in 45 CFR Part 75 Subpart E. 

 

3. Be limited to minimum amounts needed to cover allowable project costs. 

 

 

 

All advance payments on Federal awards must be deposited and maintained in insured accounts 

whenever possible and in interest-bearing accounts unless the following applies;  

  

a)  HCHC receives less than $120,000 in Federal awards per year. b) The best reasonably available 

interest-bearing account would not be expected to earn interest in excess of $500 per year on 

Federal cash balances. c) The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high 

that it would not be feasible within the expected Federal and non-Federal cash resources. d) A 

foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest bearing accounts.  

  

Cash receipts procedures are established to insure that receipts are adequately safeguarded and 

properly deposited, that all receipts are properly recorded in the patient accounting records, and 

that receipts are identified in sufficient detail to facilitate preparation of the monthly financial 

reports.  

  

Amounts received and prepared deposits are held in a locked cabinet at all times and deposits are 

made at least once weekly and more often when practical. 
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Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. 

 

Finance Department 

 

 

SUBJECT: NAME OF POLICY – FINANCIAL POLICY 

REGULATORY REFERENCE:  Code of Federal Regulations 45 (CFR) Part 75 and 

PIN 2013-01 

 

Purpose:  
The Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. (HCHC) is a Health Center Program authorized 

under section 330 of the Public Health Service (PHS) Act 42 U.S.C. 254b) (“section 330”) and is 

required to maintain accounting and internal control systems appropriate to the size and 

complexity of the organization reflecting Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 

and separate functions appropriate to organizational size to safeguard assets and maintain 

financial stability. As such the Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. (HCHC) management 

has adopted this policy to have a formal documented process to meet these requirements and   

establish guidelines for developing financial and accounting procedures necessary to safeguard 

the financial resources of HCHC.  
 

Policy: 
HCHC will maintain and update as necessary a Financial Procedure Manual that contains 

procedures for the following topics: 

 Maintenance of Account Records and Record Retention 

 Cash Disbursements and Receipts 

 Cost Allocation 

 Purchasing and Reimbursement Procedures 

 Reporting 

 Payroll 

 Fixed Asset Accounting 

 Patient Revenue and Receivables 

 

Questions should be directed to the Executive Director or the Chief Financial Officer at 413-238-

5511. 
 

Originally Drafted: MARCH 2004 Reviewed or Revised: DEC. 20198 

                                                                                                                and retroactive to JAN.1, 2018 

 
Approved by Board of Directors,                                          Date: December 126, 20189  
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 Approved by: 

 

Eliza Lake_                              Date:  December 126, 20198 

Eliza B. Lake 

Chief Executive Officer, HCHC 

 

John Follet, MD                                       Date:  December 126, 20198  

John Follet, MD 

President, HCHC Board of Directors 
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HILLTOWN COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS, INC.  
 

is a not-for-profit healthcare facility providing medical, dental, behavioral health and 
related services at Worthington Health Center, Worthington, MA; Huntington Health 

Center, Huntington, MA; J.P. Musante Health Center, Amherst, MA and a School-Based 
Health Center located within Gateway Regional High School, Huntington, MA. 

 
 

Mission 

Creating access to high quality integrated health care and promoting well-being for 
individuals, families and our communities. 

Vision 

Communities Engaged for Health 

Values 

We listen, consider and care. We respect the individual strengths and diverse 
experiences of the people we serve and all of our employees. 

We commit to working together. We provide integrated care through teamwork and 
collaboration. 

We hold ourselves accountable. We work to the best of our abilities and commit to 
open communication. 

We encourage curiosity and growth. We strive to continually improve through 
innovation and the use of best practices. 

We focus on our future. We ensure financial sustainability through efficient practices 
and management. 
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Purpose of the Corporation 
 

To provide, encourage and administer facilities for health care access for all the 
inhabitants of the surrounding communities as are deemed necessary, feasible and 
affordable. 
 
To participate in the coordination of community and area health projects and activities 
including cooperation with, and the providing of appropriate space for,  
healthcare services. 
 
To be ready, and to act, at all times to conserve and promote the health of the 
population in the communities, regardless of ability to pay. 
 
To sponsor charitable, scientific, and educational endeavors directed toward the 
promotion of any project designed to improve the health of the community. 
 
To engage in any other activity, endeavor, or course of action  
not inconsistent with the above. 
 
 
Financial Management 
 
HCHC’s financial management systems, including records documenting compliance 
with Federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
and state awards, must be sufficient to permit the preparation of reports required by 
general and program-specific terms and conditions; and the tracing of funds to a level of 
expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have been used according to the 
Federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
award.  (See Appendix A Organizational Chart) 
 
HCHC must; 

a) Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal and state award 
that provides reasonable assurance that HCHC is managing the Federal and 
state award in compliance with Federal and state statutes, regulations, and the 
terms and conditions of the Federal award. These internal controls should be in 
compliance with guidance in “Standards for Internal Control in the Federal 
Government,” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States or the 
“Internal Control Integrated Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). 

b) Comply with Federal and State statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of the awards. 

c) Evaluate and monitor the compliance with statutes, regulations and the terms 
and conditions of awards. 

d) Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings. 
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e) Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable 
information and other information the awarding agency or pass-through entity 
designates as sensitive or what HCHC considers sensitive consistent with 
applicable Federal and state laws regarding privacy and obligations of 
confidentiality. 
 
 

Chart of Accounts 
  
The chart of accounts is designed to provide management with an analysis of financial 
position and a statement of operating revenues and expenses on a time accrual basis.  
The chart of accounts is established using the total grant concept.  As such, each 
individual funding source is segregated in the general ledger to allow management to 
easily distinguish revenues and expenses by funding source.  This allows for easier 
preparation of monthly reimbursement vouchers for contracts as well as regulatory 
reporting (FSR, UFR, UDS, etc.) 
 
All financial transactions are designated by an account code.  The digits employed are 
selected from the chart of accounts. 
 
Definition of Coding Structure (Refer to Appendix B) 
 
Each account code is subdivided into four separate segments.  
 
Consisting of: 
 

1. Fund   XX 
2. Account  XXXXX 
3. Location  XX 
4. Department  XX 

 
 

1. Fund - 01  Used for all transactions 
 

2. Account - The digits represent the major account classifications for balance 
sheet, revenue, and expense items.  For example: XXXXX 
 

a. Assets     = 1XXXX 
b. Liabilities      = 2 
c. Net Assets     = 3 
d. Revenue / Income    = 3 
e. Salaries and Benefits   = 5 
f. Expenses     = 6 
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3. Location – XX   Used to identify location. 
 

4. Department – XX Used to identify each department. 
 
 
 
Subaccount Segment 
 

1. Alphanumeric codes that identify grants 
2. UFR codes that correspond with UFR coding – if required 
3. Raiser’s Edge code – if required 

 
 
 
Description of Accounts 
 
Assets 
 
All asset accounts are designated within the chart of accounts by the appropriate digit of 
the account-numbering scheme.  
 
Cash Accounts are debited for bank deposits and when stop payments are placed on 
previously issued checks.  These accounts are credited for funds withdrawn and any 
miscellaneous bank charges. Cash receipts are deposited into the operating account on 
a regular basis in accordance with the cash receipts policies. Insurance & patient 
payments are debited to cash on hand when received and then recorded to the General 
Operating Account when deposited in the bank. 
 
A petty cash fund is established at each site.  Reimbursements for expenses paid from 
petty cash are made from the operating account.  Expenses are charged to the 
appropriate account at the time of reimbursement. Change Funds are set up for making 
change for patient cash payments, amounts are set and adjusted as needed. 
 
Accounts Receivable accounts are debited for grant funds due, revenue billed, and any 
other amounts owed to the health center.  Accounts receivable are credited for cash 
collected and any un-collectible amounts.  A debit balance represents the balance owed 
to the health center. 
 
Allowance for doubtful accounts is a reserve for estimated un-collectible patient 
receivables contained in the accounts receivable balance.  The purpose of the 
allowance is to provide the estimated un-collectible amount of recorded receivables.  
The reserve is established based on the historical bad debt experience, current 
economic conditions, estimates and presumptions. The allowance is reviewed for 
revision periodically. 
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Prepaid expenses are debited for significant current cash outlays that are related to 
future periods.   
 
Fixed Assets - The health center has established a capitalization amount for fixed 
assets of $5,000 or more. 
 
Accumulated depreciation accounts are credited monthly for estimated depreciation on 
assets and debited to operating expenses. Accounts are reconciled at yearend to actual 
amounts, per the annual audit 
 
Other assets include accounts designated for investments or cash set aside for stability 
or future capital projects. 
 
 
 
Liabilities  
 
Accounts Payable 
 
Accounts payable are credited for the amounts owed vendors for receipt of goods and 
services.  An entry is made to an accounts payable register for vendors’ invoices 
received and approved for payment regardless of which program incurred the expense.  
Accounts payable are debited for cash disbursements against established payables.  
The balance (credit) reflects outstanding vendor liabilities.   
 
Accrued liabilities are established for payroll costs, amounts withheld from employees, 
and other accrued liabilities.  These accounts are credited for amounts due and debited 
upon payment or settlement.  The balance (credit) represents the amount owed.  At the 
close of each month, the estimated accrued payroll expenses incurred in the current 
month are booked in the general ledger as an accrued expense. All expenses are 
accrued at yearend. 
 
Loans/Mortgages payable 
 
Amounts borrowed for operating or capital purchases or improvements. These accounts 
are credited monthly as balances are paid or debited when new funds are borrowed. 
 
Capital Leases 
 
Amounts are credited to these accounts if major leases are entered into that require 
financing. The accounts are debited monthly as principal payments are made on these 
leases to reduce the amount owed. 
 
Deferred Revenue Accounts 
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These accounts are credited when grants and other forms of payment are received by 
the health center for future services, equipment purchases, or capital projects. These 
amounts are debited as the services are provided or per current accounting regulations 
during the annual audit. 
 
 
Net Assets 
 
YTD Net Income 
 
These accounts accumulate the estimated net profit of each cost center on a monthly 
basis. After final adjustment at the completion of the annual audit, each balance is 
closed to the appropriate Fund Balance account. These accounts are zeroed out at the 
end of each fiscal year. 
 
 
Net Assets 
 
These are accounts that designate the net worth of the health center. Fund balance 
accounts are adjusted annually at the conclusion of the annual audit. Any net profit or 
loss is recorded to the appropriate fund balance at the conclusion of the annual audit. 
 
Net Assets without and with Donor Restrictions 
 
Beginning in 2018, net assets without donor restrictions is one of two classifications of 
net assets reported on the financial statements of a not-for-profit organization's financial 
statements. This classification replaces the previous classification unrestricted net 
assets. 
 
Beginning in 2018, net assets with donor restrictions is second of two classifications of 
net assets reported on the financial statements of a not-for-profit organization's financial 
statements. This classification is to be used instead of the following two 
classifications: temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. 
 
Revenues 
 
Revenues are credited to revenue accounts as they are considered earned and 
receivable. These can be revenues for services provided to patients or related to grant 
conditions.   
 
Contra-Revenues 
 
These are accounts which are credited to adjust for patient amounts billed, but not 
considered collectible. These include, but are not limited to insurance allowances, free 
care, bad debt and billing errors. 
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Expenses 
 
Expense accounts are debited for paid or accrued expenditures.  Types of expenses 
include but are not limited to: 
 

Salaries/Wages – These costs are recorded to accrued liabilities and distributed 
to individual departments based on the gross salaries/wages recorded on the 
payroll allocation worksheet. The payroll timesheet has been established to 
account for the time and effort of each individual employee.  Thus, the general 
ledger accounts properly reflect the amount paid to employees based on 
departmental and funding source time and effort recorded on timesheets. 
 
Payroll Taxes – These are mandatory payments related to payroll which normally 
include FICA, Medicare, Workman’s Compensation Insurance and State 
Unemployment Insurance. Applicable costs are distributed to programs and 
departments in proportion to monthly salary distributions.   
 
Fringe Benefits – Included in this account are medical, dental, disability and 
group life insurance; and any other employee benefits which may be offered by 
the health center.  A description of current benefits may be found in the 
employee handbook.  Applicable costs are distributed to programs and 
departments in proportion to monthly salary distributions.   
 
Consultants and Contractual – These costs include dental labs & those 
individuals to whom the health center issues 1099 statements at year-end.  
Examples include auditing firms, legal firms, payroll service, computer 
consultants, skilled labor, and independent health-care providers.     
 
Facilities Costs – Costs associated with the occupancy of the health center's 
buildings are included in these line items.    
 
Utilities – These expenses include electricity, heating and cooling fuel, water 
supply and related expenses. 
 
Repairs and Maintenance – Costs associated with the upkeep of the property 
and equipment are recorded in these accounts.  
 
Mortgage Interest – Interest costs associated with mortgage loans related to 
health center buildings and improvements. 
 
Depreciation – The estimated depreciation related to the health center's fixed 
assets are recorded monthly in these accounts that are broken out by type of 
asset (buildings, building improvements, furniture and equipment, etc). 
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Building & General Liability – These accounts include any type of insurance 
related to the buildings, their contents and general liability related to agency 
facilities or use. 
 
Program Supplies – Program supplies are supplies needed for providing medical, 
dental or other program services and are recorded separately from general office 
supplies or facility supplies.  
 
Telephone – Includes regular monthly telephone costs, beepers, answering 
service, internet costs and other related communication expenses. 
 
Dues and Memberships – These se expenses include all membership dues paid 
to organizations for the health center or any employee of the health center. 
 
Subscriptions & Journals – All subscriptions to magazines and professional 
journals. 
 
Licenses and Fees – These expenses include all individual provider and agency 
licenses required by state and federal agencies for which the health center pays. 
 
Travel – These costs include all expenses related to employee travel for health 
center business or necessary to the functioning of the health center operations. 
They include staff mileage at current approved rate, parking, tolls, motels, some 
meals and other related travel expenses.   
 
Printing – Costs associated with production of letterhead, newsletters, invoices, 
patient receivable statements, forms, business cards and envelopes are 
recorded to these accounts.   
 
Postage & Shipping – Amounts incurred to mail business correspondence or to 
ship items as required for operation of the health center. 
 
Staff Recruitment/Training - All costs associated with the recruitment and/or 
training of staff are recorded to these accounts.  This may include workshops, 
skill trainings and other mandatory trainings required for licensure or other 
purposes. 
 
Interest - Interest costs for general operating use, such as for a line of credit are 
charged to this line item. It does not include any interest for building purchases or 
improvements.  
 
Professional Insurance – This account includes professional liability insurance 
related to services provided by the health center and its employees as well as 
Director’s & Officer’s insurance.  
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Bad Debt - All costs associated with the write off of those patient receivable 
accounts deemed not collectible are included in this account. Bad Debt is 
recorded as a Contra-Revenue Account on the general ledger and then adjusted 
to an expense account on the annual audit. 

 
Expenses are charged to the program and funding source benefiting from the goods or 
services.  If a specific department cannot be identified, the expense is charged to the 
Administration, Billing, Facility or other appropriate allocation pool. If all programs and 
funding sources are likely to derive benefit from the goods or services, the expense is 
charged to the appropriate overhead department.  See cost principles as outlined in 45 
CFR 75 subpart E for further cost definitions and information on allowable and 
unallowable costs associated with Federal awards. 
 
Maintenance of Accounting Records 
 
 
The health center maintains the following accounting records: 

a) Accounts Payable Register 
b) Cash Receipts Journal 
c) Payroll Register 
d) General Ledger and General Journal Entries 

 
Below is a description of each of these records and a brief summary explaining the 
procedures for how the entries are recorded. 
 
Accounts Payable Register 
 
All cash disbursements are initially entered in the accounts payable system upon receipt 
of the vendor invoice.  The expenditures are charged to the appropriate expense or 
asset accounts.  Invoices are batched for data entry.  A batch report is generated for 
each group of invoices entered.  The individual batch reports are retained until a 
summary batch report is generated at month’s end.   
 
Cash Receipts Journal 
 
Front desk patient receipts (co-pays, deductibles and self-pays) are batched and posted 
to the cash receipts data entry journal from daily summaries prepared by front desk 
personnel at the end of each business day.  The medical and dental departments 
submit separate summaries.   
 
Third-party payments received in the mail are batched and posted to a cash receipts 
data entry journal from summaries prepared by the Billing Department.   
 
Other receivables (grant funds, enhanced revenue payments, cobra payments, etc) are 
batched and posted to a cash receipts data entry journal from summaries prepared by 
the Accounting Department.  (See Cash Receipts section for description of procedures.) 
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By the end of each month all entries are posted to the general ledger.  The cash 
account is debited for the total of the monthly receipts.  
 
Payroll Register 
 
The payroll register is obtained from the payroll processing company, currently 
Checkwriters.  The monthly payroll entries are obtained from the data in the payroll 
register. A spreadsheet is prepared monthly using the payroll register and the 
allocations recorded on time sheets by each employee. This spread sheet allocates 
amounts paid to employees to the program and site in which they worked. The 
summarized totals for each program and site are recorded to the general ledger from 
these reports.  
General Ledger and General Journal Entries 
 
Entries to the general ledger are posted monthly.  The general ledger is printed monthly 
and filed for future reference.   
 
Some journal entries consist of those that are recurring in nature.  Entries are recorded 
first in a data entry file.  Entries are batched according to type.  Each data entry batch is 
automatically assigned a unique number by the computerized accounting system. 
 
Correcting and/or adjusting entries are also posted monthly.  Entries are recorded first 
on a data entry file.  Entries are batched according to type.  Each data entry batch is 
automatically assigned a unique number by the computerized accounting system. 
 
Record Retention 
 
Computerized/Electronic Records: 
 
General Ledger / Financial records are maintained on Financial Edge which is a cloud-
based software under a subscription service that also provides sophisticated security 
protocols, disaster recovery procedures and 24 hour system availability.   
 
Non-computerized Records: 
 

Accounting Records 
 

 Bank statements and deposit slips = 7 
 Expense reports = 7 
 Subsidiary ledger (A/P & A/R) = 7 
 Checks (payroll and general) = 7 
 Payroll - reports, earnings records = 8 
 Vouchers (vendors) = 7 
 Mortgages, notes, leases (expired) = 8 
 Tax returns and working papers = Permanent 
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 External Audit reports = Permanent 
 

Corporate Records: 
 

 Bylaws, charters, operating certificates, minutes, stock & bond records, 
checks (for taxes, property, important contracts, agreements, copyright & 
trademark registrations, deeds, labor agreements, patents, proxies, pension 
records = As laws require. 

 
 Correspondence 

o General = 2 
o Legal & tax = Permanent or as required. 

 
 Insurance 

o Expired policies = 3 
o Accident and fire inspection reports = 6 
o Group disability records, safety reports = 8 
o Claims (after settlement) = 10 

 
 Personnel: 

o Expired contracts = 7 
o Timesheets = 7 
o Disability & sick benefits records, terminated personnel files = 7 
o Withholding tax statements = 7 

 
Further, the Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 requires all entities that 
receive federal funds to retain all documents associated with the funds for a minimum of 
three years.  Similarly, because the health center receives funding from Medicare and 
Medicaid, these documents must be retained for a minimum of three years after the 
date of final settlement on that year's cost report.  As a rule, the documents associated 
with Medicare and Medicaid should be retained for at least 5 years.  This allows for the 
time lag between the submission of the cost reports and the settlements from the 
intermediaries.  
 
Cash Disbursements  
 
All disbursements are made out of one general operating account.  Petty cash 
expended is reimbursed from the account monthly or upon request of the custodian of 
the petty cash fund.  Petty cash expenses are recorded to the general ledger at the time 
of reimbursement. 
 
 
Disbursement Procedures 
 
All checks drawn by the health center must be reviewed and signed by the Chief 
Financial Officer or the Executive Director.  In his/her absence, a signature stamp may 
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be used for essential disbursements provided a list of the checks so stamped is 
submitted for review.  The signature stamp is kept in a locked cabinet at all times.  
Checks in the amount of $10,000 or more require two signatures. 
 
Pre-approval limits and requirements are detailed on page 28 under Purchasing 
Procedures.  
 
A multipart check is prepared for disbursements paid from the general operating 
account. The bottom two-thirds of the check is sent as payment to vendors.  The top 
portion of the check is stapled to the invoice to provide the health center with adequate 
documentation for payment of the expenditure.  The detailed procedures related to the 
preparation, distribution, and retention of the disbursement vouchers are prescribed in 
the accounts payable section. 
 
Bank account reconciliation is completed each month to ensure that all cash 
transactions are properly recorded, and that there are no unusual endorsements. The 
bank statement is downloaded electronically and is reconciled to the appropriate cash 
balance in the general ledger.   
 
Petty Cash 
 
The finance department maintains one petty cash fund.  The fund is used for individual 
purchases.  Receipts must be submitted to substantiate disbursements and attached to 
a completed petty cash reimbursement request.  Transactions are recorded on the petty 
cash expenditures log. 
 
The petty cash fund's balance is set so that it will normally be sufficient for a full month 
before it requires reimbursement. The fund is reimbursed either at the end of the month 
or whenever the fund's balance falls to a certain amount determined by the custodian of 
the account.  Reimbursement is made from the general operating account upon 
submission of a requisition prepared by the custodian of the account. The requisition 
must include receipts or proper documentation for expenditures from the account.   
 
The reimbursement check is drawn to the order of Petty Cash.   
 
 
Cash Receipts  
 
The health center receives various types of cash receipts on a daily basis.  These 
include payments received via mail or electronic transfer such as contract revenue 
reimbursement, contributions, payment on patient accounts, electronic wire transfers 
such as Medicaid receipts and grant draw downs, as well as cash from patients and 
other miscellaneous items.   
 
Draw downs on Federal awards must minimize the time elapsing between the transfer 
of funds from the United States Treasury or the pass-through entity and the 



 

December 2019January 2018  17 

disbursement by HCHC.  
 
Drawdowns on Federal awards must; 

1. Be done in manner that minimizes the time elapsing between the transfer of the 
Federal award funds from HRSA and the disbursement of these funds by the 
HCHC. 

2. Be used for expenditures that are allowable in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award and with the Federal Cost Principles in 45 CFR 
Part 75 Subpart E. 

3. Be limited to minimum amounts needed to cover allowable project costs. 
 
All advance payments on Federal awards must be deposited and maintained in 
insured accounts whenever possible and in interest-bearing accounts unless the 
following applies; 

 
a)  HCHC receives less than $120,000 in Federal awards per year. 
b) The best reasonably available interest-bearing account would not be expected to 

earn interest in excess of $500 per year on Federal cash balances. 
c) The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high that it 

would not be feasible within the expected Federal and non-Federal cash 
resources. 

d) A foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest bearing 
accounts. 

 
Cash receipts procedures are established to insure that receipts are adequately 
safeguarded and properly deposited, that all receipts are properly recorded in the 
patient accounting records, and that receipts are identified in sufficient detail to facilitate 
preparation of the monthly financial reports. 
 
Amounts received and prepared deposits are held in a locked cabinet at all times and 
deposits are made at least once weekly and more often when practical. 
 
Cash Receipts – Mail or Billing  
 
As the mail is sorted, checks are segregated and distributed to the appropriate 
departments.  Third-party payments and patient payments received via mail are 
forwarded directly to the Billing Department, together with the Explanation of Benefits 
(EOB), for posting to patient accounts.  All other checks are forwarded directly to the 
Finance Department. 
 
Upon completion of each patient receipt posting batch, the designated person in the 
Billing Department forwards the checks in that batch to the Finance Department. 
Deposit slips are prepared in duplicate and are retained in the Finance Department.  A 
check summary voucher, a copy of the register tape listing all checks in the batch, and a 
cover sheet showing the total of the batch and general ledger account is included.   
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The amount and account code indicated on the cover sheet is used to prepare the 
monthly billing cash receipts journal entry to the General Ledger. 
 
Cash Receipts – Front Desk 
 
Self-pay receipts (co-payments, deductibles, uninsured services) are received by the 
medical and dental front desks daily.  Payments may be made using cash, check or a 
credit card.   
 
The amount to be collected appears on the patient’s electronic record.  Front desk staff 
may enter the amount collected and the form of payment on their electronic patient 
record or manually record the amount collected. 
 
At the end of each day, the staff member responsible for closing each front desk 
reconciles the cash receipts.  A transmittal receipt is prepared in triplicate showing a 
breakdown of cash, check and credit card payments for that day.  One copy is 
forwarded to the Finance Department with the payments, one copy is forwarded 
electronically to the Billing Department, and one copy is retained at the front desk. 
 
A log is kept in the Finance Department to ensure that each day’s cash receipts are 
received from the designated departments at all sites. 
 
A person preparing the bank deposit may combine several days’ front-desk cash 
receipts into a single deposit.  Deposit slips are prepared in duplicate.  One copy is 
included in the deposit to the bank and the other copy is retained in the Finance 
Department.  The transmittal receipts, a copy of the register tape listing all checks, and 
a cover sheet showing the total of the batch and the general ledger account is retained 
in the Finance Department. 
 
The amounts and account numbers indicated on the cover sheet are used to prepare 
the monthly front desk cash receipts journal entry to the General Ledger. 
 
 
Cash Receipts – Miscellaneous 
 
Other miscellaneous cash receipts include, but are not limited to, contract revenue 
reimbursements, contributions, COBRA payments, and enhanced fee payments.  These 
checks are forwarded directly to the Finance Department for processing. 
 
Checks are batched and prepared for deposit.  Deposit slips are prepared in duplicate.  
One copy is included in the deposit to the bank and the other copy is retained in the 
Finance Department.  A copy of the register tape listing all checks, and a cover sheet 
showing the total of the batch and the general ledger account is retained in the Finance 
Department. 
 
The amounts and account numbers indicated on the cover sheet are used to prepare 
the monthly miscellaneous cash receipt journal entry for the General Ledger. 
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General Operating Account  
 
This account is currently held by Florence Savings Bank, One Main Street, Florence, 
Massachusetts.  Both manual and electronic transactions account for the monthly 
activity in the G.O.A.  An excel spreadsheet is maintained to give an approximate 
current balance.   Each month’s beginning balance is adjusted to reflect the actual 
amount reconciled to the general ledger.  If the balance in the G.O.A exceeds the 
amount reasonably needed for the operation of the Health Center, money is transferred 
to a money market account at Florence Savings Bank that earns higher interest. Funds 
from this money market account are transferred back to the general operating account 
as needed.   
 
Other Non-Operating Revenue 
 
On occasion, the health center receives other revenue unrelated to normal operations. 
This can include donations, pledges, or other non-operating receipts. Unless specifically 
designated for operating purposes, these funds are separated and deposited to one of 
the health centers designated or restricted bank accounts. Funds received in this 
manner are reported monthly to the Finance Committee. 
 
Grant and Contracts Revenue and Receivable Procedures 
 
Grants and contracts are managed based on specific instructions from each grantor or 
contract. Some advance funds and require progress reports for activities related to the 
funding. Funds received from these funding sources are recorded as deferred revenues 
until earned. Once funds are considered earned they are recorded by general ledger 
entry to the proper earned revenue account. 
 
Other Grants or Contracts require that expenses be incurred before being reimbursed. 
These are vouchered on a regular schedule acceptable to the granting agency, in the 
format required. The vouchers could be monthly, quarterly or by some other agreed 
upon time line. The amounts of the vouchers are credited to the proper earned revenue 
account and debited to a receivable account. The proper code for the grant or contract 
is required to properly record the earned revenue. The revenue is also recorded to the 
proper department as some contracts fund more than one department or program. 
When payment is received, standard monthly journal entries are made to credit the 
proper receivable account and debit the general operating cash account.  
 
Standard Journal Entries 
 
Most journal Entries are recorded and posted monthly. Standard journal entries include: 
bank interest and fees, deposits, withdrawals, depreciation, and contracts vouchered to 
name a few.  Adjusting or correcting entries are also posted each month. Gains or 
losses on investments are recorded and posted quarterly.   
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Journal entries are recorded first in excel spreadsheets. The entries are labelled to 
allow for tracing the entries in the accounting software.  Each entry is assigned a 
number that includes the month and the number of the entry. An example would be G/L 
entry 10-06. This was done in October and is the sixth entry for that month. The backup 
documentation which supports the journal entry is also numbered similarly. 
 
Once an entry is posted, all reports including backup are filed with all other general 
ledger entries for that month. These reports are kept for future reference, reconciliation 
and documentation. 
 

COST PRINCIPLES 
 

HCHC is responsible for the effective and efficient administration of Federal, state and 
private awards through the application of sound management practices and must 
comply with applicable cost principles as outlined in 45 CFR 75 subpart E. 
 
 

COST ALLOCATION PLAN  

 
Direct Cost Allocation: 
 
Costs are allocated to programs on a direct basis whenever possible. Department 
Heads or their designees submit invoices and bills with their approval and confirm that 
the expense is for their departments. In cases where an expense is shared by 
departments/programs allocation methods have been developed to allocate expenses 
to the departments/programs that benefit from the costs. Following are the current 
allocation plans and methods used by the Health Center. 
 
Payroll is the largest expense that needs to be allocated. Salaries and wages are 
allocated based on individuals actual time worked in each program. Each employee 
completes a bi-weekly electronic time sheet listing the hours and the department those 
hours were worked in.  This information is then entered into an excel spreadsheet that is 
used to generate a monthly journal entry to allocate payroll expenses to the correct 
departments. 
 
Cost Allocation for Internal Management: 
 
There are many departments that support different segments of the Health Centers. The 
departments that are shared by different segments of the Center are: 
 
Facilities/Maintenance for each site, Billing Office services which are shared by Medical, 
Dental and Mental Health Services (all billable services), Administration/Front desks at 
each main site and Overhead/Indirect which is shared by all services of the agency. 
Each department is used by more than one program and allocation plans have been 
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developed to allocate expenses to the programs based on what is considered fair and 
logical. Costs for these shared services are pooled into one cost center and then 
allocated to programs based on the following: 
 

a) Facilities costs are recorded in separate cost pools for each site. Any expenses 
related to overall building operation are considered shared services and recorded 
to these pools. Costs are then allocated monthly to each program based on the 
square footage occupied by each program in that building. This pool can contain 
non-facility costs that need to be distributed by square feet. 

b) Administration/Front Desk services are located at each main site and the 
services currently benefit two Departments/Programs at each site. These 
departments are Medical & Behavioral Health. Originally the Dental Department 
was part of the allocation, currently dental has its’ own front desk, so no costs are 
allocated to dental. Administrative or Front Desk costs are allocated to the 
programs based on the annual visits in each program during the previous fiscal 
year. 

c) The billing office is one service that is shared by all sites, but not by all programs. 
The billing office services only benefit the programs that bill for patient services. 
For this reason the costs that are associated with the billing office are pooled and 
allocated based on visits or units of service provided for the month. 

d) Indirect/Overhead costs are costs that benefit the whole Center. These are costs 
such as salaries and associated costs of the Executive Office, Finance 
Department or Human Resources. These expenses are pooled and allocated 
based on the modified direct costs (excludes cost of subcontracts over $25,000 
in the base) of each program, sub-program or grant. Every program gets an even 
share allocated to it based on their direct expenses (with all other allocated 
expenses already included). This method allows each program to be allocated 
the same percentage of Indirect/Overhead costs as every other department in 
the Center. 

 
These allocation methods are currently in place in the event that a managerial cost 
allocation is used, but are to be reviewed from time to time based on changes to 
programs, sites or need. 
 
 
Regulatory Cost Allocation Methods: 
 
Other methods as directed by regulatory agencies are used per their guidelines and 
requirements. 
 
 
 
Procurement  
 

HCHC general procurement standards; 
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a) Procurement procedures reflect applicable federal and state regulations. 
 

b) HCHC maintains a written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and 
governing the actions of its employees engaged in the selection, award and 
administration of contracts. This policy has a formal documented process for 
disclosing all real or apparent conflicts of interest that are discovered or that have 
been brought to attention in connection with HCHC’s activities. See copy of 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY with REGULATORY REFERENCE:  45 CFR 
75.327 and 42 CFR Pt 51c.304 (b) attached as Appendix F. 
 
No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or 
administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real 
or apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the 
employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or 
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the 
parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal 
benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees, and 
agents of HCHC may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of 
monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts. However, HCHC may 
set standards for situations in which the financial interest is not substantial or the 
gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. The standards of conduct must 
provide for disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of such standards by 
officers, employees, or agents of the non-Federal entity. 
 

c) HCHC's procurements must avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative 
items. Consideration should be given to consolidating or breaking out 
procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. Where appropriate, an 
analysis will be made of lease versus purchase alternatives, and any other 
appropriate analysis to determine the most economical approach. 
 

d) HCHC encourages the use of entering into state and local intergovernmental 
agreements or inter-entity agreements where appropriate for procurement or use 
of common or shared goods and services.  
 

e) HCHC encourages the use of Federal excess and surplus property in lieu of 
purchasing new equipment and property whenever such use is feasible and 
reduces project costs. 
 

f) HCHC encourages the use of value engineering clauses in contracts for 
construction projects of sufficient size to offer reasonable opportunities for cost 
reductions. Value engineering is a systematic and creative analysis of each 
contract item or task to ensure that its essential function is provided at the overall 
lower cost. 
 

g) HCHC must award contracts only to responsible contractors possessing the 
ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of a proposed 
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procurement. Consideration will be given to such matters as contractor integrity, 
compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and 
technical resources. 
 

h) HCHC must maintain records sufficient to detail the history of procurement. 
These records will include, but are not necessarily limited to the following: 
rationale for the method of procurement, selection of contract type, contractor 
selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price. 
 

i) HCHC may use a time and materials type contract only after a determination that 
no other contract is suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the 
contractor exceeds at its own risk. 

1)  Time and materials type contract means a contract whose cost to a non-
Federal entity is the sum of:  

i. The actual cost of materials; and 
ii. Direct labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, 

general and administrative expenses, and profit. 
2) Since this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and-    

materials contract provides no positive profit incentive to the contractor for 
cost control or labor efficiency. Therefore, each contract must set a ceiling 
price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, HCHC must 
assert a high degree of oversight in order to obtain reasonable assurance 
that the contractor is using efficient methods and effective cost controls. 
 

j) HCHC alone must be responsible, in accordance with good administrative 
practice and sound business judgment, for the settlement of all contractual and 
administrative issues arising out of procurements. These issues include, but are 
not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes, and claims. These standards 
do not relieve the non-Federal entity of any contractual responsibilities under its 
contracts. The HHS awarding agency will not substitute its judgment for that of 
the non-Federal entity unless the matter is primarily a Federal concern. Violations 
of law will be referred to the local, tribal, state, or Federal authority having proper 
jurisdiction. 
 

k) The type of procuring instruments used will be determined HCHC but shall be 
appropriate for the particular procurement and for promoting the best interest of 
the program or project involved. 
 

Competition; 
 

a) All procurement transactions must be conducted in a manner providing full and 
open competition consistent with the standards of this section. In order to ensure 
objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair competitive advantage, 
contractors that develop or draft specifications, requirements, statements of 
work, or invitations for bids or requests for proposals must be excluded from 
competing for such procurements. Some of the situations considered to be 
restrictive of competition include but are not limited to: 
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1) Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for them to qualify to 
do business; 

2) Requiring unnecessary experience and excessive bonding; 
3) Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between affiliated 

companies; 
4) Noncompetitive contracts to consultants that are on retainer contracts; 
5) Organizational conflicts of interest; 
6) Specifying only a “brand name” product instead of allowing “an equal” 

product to be offered and describing the performance or other relevant 
requirements of the procurement; and 

7) Any arbitrary action in the procurement process. 
 

b) HCHC must conduct procurements in a manner that prohibits the use of 
statutorily or administratively imposed state, local, or tribal geographical 
preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in those cases where 
applicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or encourage geographic 
preference. Nothing in this section preempts state licensing laws. When 
contracting for architectural and engineering (A/E) services, geographic location 
may be a selection criterion provided its application leaves an appropriate 
number of qualified firms, given the nature and size of the project, to compete for 
the contract. 
 

c) HCHC must have written procedures for procurement transactions. These 
procedures must ensure that all solicitations: 

1) Incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements 
for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description must 
not, in competitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict 
competition. The description may include a statement of the qualitative 
nature of the material, product or service to be procured and, when 
necessary, must set forth those minimum essential characteristics and 
standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. 
Detailed product specifications should be avoided if at all possible. When 
it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description 
of the technical requirements, a “brand name or equivalent” description 
may be used as a means to define the performance or other salient 
requirements of procurement. The specific features of the named brand 
which must be met by offers must be clearly stated; and 

2) Identify all requirements which the offerors must fulfill and all other factors 
to be used in evaluating bids or proposals. 

3) HCHC must ensure that all prequalified lists of persons, firms, or products 
which are used in acquiring goods and services are current and include 
enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free competition. 
Also, HCHC must not preclude potential bidders from qualifying during the 
solicitation period. 

 
Procurement Procedures; 
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HCHC must use one of the following methods of procurement; 
 

a) Procurement by micro-purchases. Procurement by micro-purchase is the 
acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar amount of which does 
not exceed the micro-purchase threshold as defined by the Federal Acquisition 
Regulation (current threshold $3,500). To the extent practicable, HCHC will 
distribute micro-purchases equitably among qualified suppliers. Micro-purchases 
may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotations provided the acquisition 
price is considered to be reasonable. 
 

b)  Procurement by small purchase procedures. Small purchase procedures are 
those relatively simple and informal procurement methods for securing services, 
supplies, or other property that do not cost more than the Simplified Acquisition 
Threshold as defined by the Federal Acquisition Regulation (current thresholds 
greater than $3,500 and less than or equal to $150,000). If small purchase 
procedures are used, price or rate quotations must be obtained from an 
adequate number of qualified sources. 
 

c) Procurement by sealed bids (formal advertising). Bids are publicly solicited and a 
firm fixed price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the responsible 
bidder whose bid, conforming with all the material terms and conditions of the 
invitation for bids, is the lowest in price. The sealed bid method is the preferred 
method for procuring construction, if the conditions in paragraph (c)(1) of this 
section apply. 

1. In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions should 
be present: 

i. A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase 
description is available; 

ii. Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete 
effectively for the business; and 

iii. The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the 
selection of the successful bidder can be made principally on the 
basis of price. 

2. If sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply: 
i. Bids must be solicited from an adequate number of known 

suppliers, providing them sufficient response time prior to the date 
set for opening the bids, for local, and tribal governments, the 
invitation for bids must be publicly advertised; 

ii. The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and 
pertinent attachments, must define the items or services in order for 
the bidder to properly respond; 

iii. All bids will be opened at the time and place prescribed in the 
invitation for bids; 

iv. A firm fixed price contract award will be made in writing to the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Where specified in 
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bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation cost, 
and life cycle costs must be considered in determining which bid is 
lowest. Payment discounts will only be used to determine the low 
bid when prior experience indicates that such discounts are usually 
taken advantage of; and 

v. Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented 
reason. 
 

d) Procurement by competitive proposals. The technique of competitive proposals is 
normally conducted with more than one source submitting an offer, and either a 
fixed price or cost-reimbursement type contract is awarded. It is generally used 
when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids. If this method is 
used, the following requirements apply: 

1. Requests for proposals must be publicized and identify all evaluation 
factors and their relative importance. Any response to publicized requests 
for proposals must be considered to the maximum extent practical; 

2. Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of qualified 
sources; 

3. HCHC must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of 
the proposals received and for selecting recipients; 

4. Contracts must be awarded to the responsible firm whose proposal is 
most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors 
considered; and 

5. HCHC may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-based 
procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services 
whereby competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified 
competitor is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable 
compensation. The method, where price is not used as a selection factor, 
can only be used in procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be 
used to purchase other types of services though A/E firms are a potential 
source to perform the proposed effort. 
 

e) Procurement by noncompetitive proposals. Procurement by noncompetitive 
proposals is procurement through solicitation of a proposal from only one source 
and may be used only when one or more of the following circumstances apply: 

1. The item is available only from a single source; 
2. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a 

delay resulting from competitive solicitation; 
3. The HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes 

noncompetitive proposals in response to a written request from the non-
Federal entity; or 

4. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined 
inadequate. 

f) Contracting with small and minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, 
and labor surplus area firms 
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1. HCHC must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority 
businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms 
are used when possible. 

2. Affirmative steps must include: 
i. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's 

business enterprises on solicitation lists; 
ii. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's 

business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential 
sources; 

iii. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into 
smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small 
and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 

iv. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, 
which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, 
and women's business enterprises; 

v. Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such 
organizations as the Small Business Administration and the 
Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 
Commerce; 

vi. Requiring the prime contractor, if subcontracts are to be let, to take 
the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs (2)(i) through (v) of this 
section. 
 

g) Contract cost and price. 
1. HCHC must perform a cost or price analysis in connection with every 

procurement action in excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, 
(currently $150,000) including contract modifications. The method and 
degree of analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular 
procurement situation, but as a starting point, HCHC must make 
independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals. 

2. HCHC must negotiate profit as a separate element of the price for each 
contract in which there is no price competition and in all cases where cost 
analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable profit, 
consideration must be given to the complexity of the work to be 
performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor's investment, 
the amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, 
and industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar 
work. 

3. Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under the Federal 
award are allowable only to the extent that costs incurred or cost 
estimates included in negotiated prices would be allowable under CFR 75 
subpart E. 

4. The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost 
methods of contracting must not be used. 
 

h) Bonding requirements. 
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1. For construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts 
exceeding the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, (currently $150,000) the 
HHS awarding agency or pass-through entity may accept the bonding 
policy and requirements of the non-Federal entity provided that the HHS 
awarding agency or pass-through entity has made a determination that the 
Federal interest is adequately protected. If such a determination has not 
been made, the minimum requirements must be as follows: 

i. A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the 
bid price. The “bid guarantee” must consist of a firm commitment 
such as a bid bond, certified check, or other negotiable instrument 
accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon 
acceptance of the bid, execute such contractual documents as may 
be required within the time specified. 

ii. A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of 
the contract price. A “performance bond” is one executed in 
connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's 
obligations under such contract. 

iii. A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the 
contract price. A “payment bond” is one executed in connection 
with a contract to assure payment as required by law of all persons 
supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided 
for in the contract. 

iv. Where bonds are required in the situations described herein, the 
bonds shall be obtained from companies holding certificates of 
authority as acceptable sureties pursuant to 31 CFR part 223. 

 
 
 
Additional Procurement Procedures; 
 
Purchase orders are not used.  Regular operating supplies are ordered by the 
designated person within each department and do not require prior approval. 
Additionally, a designated person within each department checks and confirms the 
accuracy and completeness of deliveries. Invoices are randomly audited by the Finance 
Department to ensure that orders are for normal operating supplies and do not require 
further approval. 
 
Requests for purchases of items that cost more than $500 and which are not 
considered regular operating supplies must be submitted on a Purchase Requisition 
form. (See Appendix C)  All other non-regular purchases can be submitted either on a 
Purchase Requisition or a Check Request form (See Appendix D). The purchase can be 
made when proper approval for the purchase has been received.  See below for 
guidelines of required approvals based on the cost of the purchase. In most cases the 
purchase will be for a specific department who will then arrange the purchase. The 
Finance Department offers assistance and guidance whenever needed. 
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Payment arrangements need to be made in advance, as the health center cannot 
accept C.O.D. shipments.  
 
Required signature authorizations on purchase requests for different levels of 
purchases are as follows: 
 
PURCHASE   REQUIRED SIGNATURES/APPROVALS 
Up to $500   Dept. Head or Designee signature only 
 
$501 to $5,000  Dept. Head and CEO or CFO  
 
$5,001 to $10,000  Dept. Head and CEO and CFO. 
 
$10,001 & over CEO, CFO and Finance Committee or Chair of BOD 
 
Travel Reimbursement Procedures 
 
HCHC will reimburse employees for business-related travel. The amount of 
reimbursement per mile is determined by the Finance Committee or Board and is 
subject to change.  Mileage Reimbursement Requests (See appendix E) must be 
completed and signed by the employee and the employee’s supervisor and submitted to 
the Finance Department for payment. Expenses for transportation, parking, tolls, hotels, 
food incurred as part of a business related trip and other related travel expenses are 
considered reimbursable if they comply with the Health Center travel policy as 
established by the Personnel Committee and listed in the Personnel Policies Handbook. 
 
Reimbursement for travel-related expenses requires documentation of the expenditure 
through third-party receipts or other verifiable documentation. 
 
For local travel, an employee who uses his or her own vehicle will be reimbursed upon 
completion of a Mileage Reimbursement Request.  (Refer to Appendix E)  The 
employee’s immediate supervisor must approve the request.  Reimbursement will be at 
the current mileage rate established by the Finance Committee. Receipts must be 
presented for reimbursement of other related travel expenses, such as tolls and parking. 
 
Overnight travel will be reimbursed, or pre-paid when required, using a Check Request 
Form.   Payments will be limited to the cost of transportation, hotel accommodations, 
transfers to and from the destination (taxi or bus fares, etc.) and any other items 
determined to be travel related. The employee’s immediate supervisor must approve the 
check request. Receipts or other verifiable documentation must accompany the request. 
 
Continuing Education Reimbursement Procedures 
 
The health center pays for continuing education and related travel expenses provided 
such education is relevant to the employee’s responsibilities and is deemed beneficial to 
the health center. 
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Request for reimbursement, or pre-payment when required, must be submitted on a 
Check Request Form and approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor.  Third-
party receipts or supporting documentation must accompany the request.   
 
Certain direct care providers receive stipulated amounts based on their current 
contracts.  Approval of continuing education expenses for all other staff is outlined in the 
Personnel Policies Handbook or at the discretion of the employee’s immediate 
supervisor. 
Accounts Payable Procedures 
 
The health center maintains its accounting records on an accrual basis of accounting.   
 
The Finance Department maintains copies of receiving reports.  Approval must appear 
on the receiving report by the receiving employee attesting that the goods were 
received and meet specification. These documents are used to establish the propriety 
of payments on vendor's invoices.  Upon the receipt of the invoice, the invoice is 
compared with the supporting documentation.  Finance prepares the payment voucher 
and records an entry in the Accounts Payable module of the financial software debiting 
an asset or expense account and crediting the accounts payable account.   
 
A payment voucher is not prepared for an open invoice until the invoice presented for 
payment has been matched to the approved receiving report.  In the absence of a 
receiving report, approval may be given directly on the invoice. 
 
Invoices for consultants and other services are approved by appropriate personnel. 
 
Standard recurring expenses do not require supervisory approval; however, all 
expenses are reviewed by the Accounts Payable Manager or Chief Financial Officer 
prior to payment. 
 
Travel expenses are reimbursed upon submission of a Mileage Reimbursement 
Request or a Check Request as appropriate. Requests must be supported by receipts 
and approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor. 
 
Reimbursement of miscellaneous expenses incurred on behalf of the Health Center is 
issued upon submission of a Check Request.  Requests must be supported by receipts 
and approved by the employee’s immediate supervisor 
 
Upon receipt of a vendor's invoice, the receiving report on file is matched with the 
invoice.   Approved invoices are assigned an account code and submitted to the 
Accounts Payable Manager for review and approval.  Invoices are entered into the 
financial software system daily.  The software system automatically assigns a unique 
reference number to each invoice as it is entered and a unique batch number to each 
batch of invoices.  The reference number is written on the invoice for later identification.  
The batch is held until intentionally released for posting to the General Ledger.  Entered 
invoices are then filed alphabetically. 
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Check Preparation 
 
The check is a multi-part form containing the check and additional accounting 
information such as vendor identification, invoice number, invoice date, purchase price 
and invoice description. 
 
Multiple invoices for a single vendor may be combined in one check. 
 
Each check run is automatically assigned a unique check batch number by the software 
system.  A batch report for each check run is printed and retained in the Finance 
Department. 
 
Checks are printed weekly. Additional checks may be issued in the case of emergency 
or as determined by the Finance Department. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer may review the supporting documentation before signing 
checks.  
 
Payment Procedures 
 
The bottom 2/3 of the check is mailed to the vendor for payment, together with 
remittance copies as may be requested by the vendor.  The top portion of the check is 
attached to the related invoices and supporting documentation and filed alphabetically 
by vendor in the Finance Department. 
 
Check not cleared 
 
If a check is not cleared after 120 days, the payee will be notified in writing with 
suggested options for resolving the final distribution of funds. 
 
Lost Checks 
 
Lost checks will be re-issued upon written request by the payee. 
 
 
 

Monthly Management Reports 
 
Upon completion of all monthly journal entries, financial reports are generated from the 
accounting software system. The reports include balance sheet and income statement 
reports. The reports are reviewed by the Chief Financial Officer prior to distribution to 
the Chief Executive Officer, Finance Committee, Board of Directors, and Department 
Heads. Reports are usually run by the fifteenth of each month so as to be ready for the 
monthly Finance Committee meeting.  
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Payroll Procedures 
 
Payroll is based upon time sheets electronically prepared by each employee.   If an 
employee works in more than one department/program, he or she must indicate the 
number of hours spent on each.   
 
Time sheets are generated bi-weekly with a beginning date of Monday and an ending 
date of the following Sunday.  Checks are issued bi-weekly by the payroll service, 
currently Checkwriters. There are normally 26 pay periods annually.   
 
The Human Resources Department maintains all personnel records. Hilltown 
Community Health Centers, Inc. is an at-will employer committed to non-discrimination 
& affirmative action. All transactions pertaining to personnel are documented with the 
Personnel Action Form being the most used of all personnel forms. The Personnel 
Policies Handbook details personnel procedures, benefits and other pertinent personnel 
information.  
 
Employees’ vacation, sick, personal and accrued holiday time is tracked through the 
payroll systems and appears on each check stub.  Benefit leave for each employee is 
pro-rated based on the customary number of hours worked.   (For a detailed 
explanation of benefits, refer to the Personnel Policies Handbook.)    
 
Employees may voluntarily contribute to United Way through payroll deductions.   
 
Employees may contribute to a tax-deferred 403b retirement annuity.  Contributions are 
voluntary.  Matching contributions by the Health Center, in any, are determined annually 
for eligible employees.  
 
At the end of each 2-week pay period, employees electronically submit their timesheet.  
Managers then electronically approve timesheets.  Once all timesheets have been 
approved by a manager, the Finance Department transfers the information and prints 
copies of each timesheet.  Timesheets and a draft copy of the payroll register are 
reviewed by the approved staff before final submission to the payroll company. 
 
For each pay period, payroll costs are entered into payroll and tax journals that are 
posted to the general ledger at month’s end. Payroll allocation of employees time is 
determined by the department/program entered on their timesheet. 
 
United Way pledge forms are made available annually.  The HR and /or Finance 
Department keeps copies of the signed pledge forms.  The total United Way 
contribution for each pay period is recorded in the payroll journal and is posted to the 
general ledger at month’s end.  At the end of each month, a check request is processed 
and a check issued totaling the payroll deductions that month. 
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The Human Resource Department keeps copies of enrollments in the tax-deferred 
retirement annuity.   Contributions are forwarded to the managing agency each pay 
period.  The contribution list is submitted electronically; payment is made by via 
electronic withdrawal from the operating account.   
 
 
 
 
Payroll Reports Maintained 
 

1. Payroll register that identifies gross pay, less deductions and net pay by 
employee per pay period.  Prepared by payroll service and held in Finance. 

2. Check register.  Prepared by payroll service and held in Finance. 
3. Employees’ earnings records that identifies cumulative gross pay and cumulative 

deductions and net pay for individual employees.  Prepared by payroll service 
and held in Finance. 

4. Available vacation leave, sick leave, personal hours and accrued holiday hours 
per employee.   Prepared by payroll service and held in the Human Resources 
Department. 

5. Individual contributions to the health center’s tax-deferred retirement annuity.  
Report from payroll service and transmission report prepared by Finance. 

6. Quarterly IRS Form 941.  Prepared by payroll service and held in Finance. 
7. 1099 Forms.  Prepared by Finance. 
8. Payroll distribution reports documenting gross payroll for each employee and the 

program in which they worked.  
 
Accounting for Fixed Assets 
 
Items which have a useful life of more than one year and a cost of $5,000 or more are 
considered capital items or fixed assets. These items must meet the guidelines set out 
in the Purchasing Procedures outlined above. These items are depreciated in a straight-
line method based on current acceptable depreciation guidelines, acceptable useful 
lives and approved by our annual financial audit. 
 
Purchased items are recorded on a spread sheet each fiscal year. The spreadsheet 
records the date and item purchased, the vendor from which it was purchased, cost, 
account to which it was coded and any other information considered pertinent. 
Depreciation is recorded based on our interpretation of current guidelines and is 
adjusted as determined at time of the annual audit. Items are assigned a unique number 
used to identify the item when physical inventories are completed. Physical inventories 
are completed and documented annually. The physical inventory matches the item to 
the inventory record and notes the location of the item. All discrepancies must be 
resolved.  
 
When a fixed asset is retired, it is removed by netting the original value against the 
depreciation to determine any net loss. If the asset is sold, the amount from the sale is 
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added to the net value at disposal and any difference is recorded as a gain or loss on 
the asset sold, whichever is appropriate. 
 
As required by Federal awarding agencies, HCHC will submit reports on the status of 
Real Property in which the Federal Government retains an interest.  
 
 
 
 
Patient Revenue and Receivable Process 
 
Reports are generated monthly by the Billing Department. The reports detail charges, 
receipts, adjustments and bad debt for patient receivables. Each set of monthly reports 
includes a reconciliation of receivable balances which matches the amounts on the 
patient receivable systems. An input sheet of all transactions is prepared using these 
reports and is entered into the general ledger. Copies of all pertinent reports are 
attached to the input sheet for documentation of the monthly entries. See cash receipts 
section for how patient receipts are handled and recorded. 
 
Liquidity Management  
 
HCHC will review and quantify the available resources on hand to meet cash needs for 
expenditures within one year and communicate qualitative and quantitative information 
regarding liquidity. The result of the review process, i.e. the Liquidity Plan will determine 
how liquid assets are managed to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one 
year following the balance sheet date.  
 
HCHC’s Liquidity Management Plan will consider the following items; 
 

1. Determining the amount of cash and short-term investments to keep on hand to 
meet 60 days of operating expense (how is the organization going to structure its 
financial assets to ensure they are available). 

2. Identifying the average monthly operating expenses. 
3. Consider investing any excess daily cash balances not needed to meet current 

general operating expenses. 
4. Appropriate use of the line of credit to cover cash short-falls. 
5. Ensuring the timely collection of receivables. 
6. Consideration of contractual obligations, covenants, or donor restrictions that 

would limit the availability of resources to meet operating expenses in the next 
year. 

 
In compliance with FASB ASU 2016-14 HCHC will consider and if required implement 
and disclose the following: 
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1. Present on the face of the statement of financial position amounts for two classes 
of net assets at the end of the period, That is, HCHC will report amounts for net 
assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions, as well 
as the currently required amount for total net assets. 

2. Present on the face of the statement of activities the amount of the change in 
each of the two classes of net assets. HCHC will continue to report the currently 
required amount of the change in total net assets for the period. 

3. Continue to present on the face of the statement of cash flows the net amount for 
operating cash flows using either the direct or indirect method of reporting but no 
longer require the presentation or disclosure of the indirect method 
(reconciliation) if HCHC were to use the direct method. 

4. Provide the following enhanced disclosures about: 
a. Amounts and purposes of governing board designations, appropriations, 

and similar actions that result in self-imposed limits on the use of 
resources without donor-imposed restrictions as of the end of the period. 

b. Composition of net assets with donor restrictions at the end of the period 
and how the restrictions affect the use of resources. 

c. Qualitative information that communicates how HCHC manages its liquid 
resources available to meet cash needs for general expenditures within 
one year of the balance sheet date. 

d. Quantitative information, either on the face of the balance sheet or in the 
notes, and additional qualitative information in the notes as necessary, 
that communicates the availability HCHC’s financial assets at the balance 
sheet date to meet cash needs for general expenditures within one year of 
the balance sheet date. Availability of a financial asset may be affected by 
(1) its nature, (2) external limits imposed by donors, grantors, laws, and 
contracts with others, and (3) internal limits imposed by governing board 
decisions. 

e. Amounts of expenses by both their natural classification and their 
functional classification. That analysis of expenses is to be provided in one 
location, which could be on the face of the statement of activities, as a 
separate statement, or in notes to financial statements. 

f. Method(s) used to allocate costs among program and support functions. 
g. Underwater endowment funds, which include required disclosures of (1) 

HCHC’s policy, and any actions taken during the period, concerning 
appropriation from underwater endowment funds, (2) the aggregate fair 
value of such funds, (3) the aggregate of the original gift amounts (or level 
required by donor or law) to be maintained, and (4) the aggregate amount 
by which funds are underwater (deficiencies), which are to be classified as 
part of net assets with donor restrictions. 
 

5. Report investment return net of external and direct internal investment expenses 
and no longer require disclosure of those netted expenses. 
 

6. Use, in the absence of explicit donor stipulations, the placed-in-service approach 
for reporting expirations of restrictions on gifts of cash or other assets to be used 
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to acquire or construct a long-lived asset and reclassify any amounts from net 
assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions for such 
long-lived assets that have been placed in service as of the beginning of the 
period of adoption (thus eliminating the current option to release the donor-
imposed restriction over the estimated useful life of the acquired asset). 

 
 
 
 
Regulatory Reporting 
 
Systems and reports have been established to help the health center comply with all 
regulatory reporting. Many reports are required of the health center and all reports 
require different formats to report the information. The accounting system has been 
developed to allow for the different reporting formats and must include; 
 

a) Identification, in its accounts, of all Federal awards received and expended and 
the Federal programs under which they were received. Federal program and 
Federal award identification must include, as applicable, the CFDA title and 
number, Federal award identification number and year, name of the HHS 
awarding agency, and name of the pass-through entity, if any. 

b) Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each 
Federal award or program in accordance with the reporting requirements set 
forth in §§75.341 and 75.342. If an HHS awarding agency requires reporting on 
an accrual basis from a recipient that maintains its records on other than an 
accrual basis, the recipient must not be required to establish an accrual 
accounting system. This recipient may develop accrual data for its reports on the 
basis of an analysis of the documentation on hand. Similarly, a pass-through 
entity must not require a subrecipient to establish an accrual accounting system 
and must allow the subrecipient to develop accrual data for its reports on the 
basis of an analysis of the documentation on hand. 

c) Records that identify adequately the source and application of funds for federally-
funded activities. These records must contain information pertaining to Federal 
awards, authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, 
income and interest and be supported by source documentation. 

d) Effective control over, and accountability for, all funds, property, and other 
assets. The non-Federal entity must adequately safeguard all assets and assure 
that they are used solely for authorized purposes. 

e) Comparison of expenditures with budget amounts for each Federal award. 
f) Written procedures to implement the requirements of §75.305. 
g) Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance with 

subpart E of this part and the terms and conditions of the Federal award. 
 
 
 
 The major reports which are required include:  
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Annual, Federal Uniform Data System (UDS) Report 
Annual audit in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards 
45 (CFR) Part 75 
Annual grant year Federal Financial Status Report (FSR) 
State annual Uniform Financial Report (UFR) 
IRS Tax Form 990 
State tax Form PC 
Federal cash draw down quarterly report PSC-272 
Medicare annual cost report 
Medicaid annual cost report  
The system also allows for grant reporting, salary surveys and other numerous reports 
which may be required from time to time. These include the annual Federal 330 grant 
budget renewal, DPH annual contract budget adjustments and various local and private 
grants. 
 
 
 
Annual Fiscal Audit Requirements 

a)  
HCHC must provide for and submit an independent annual financial audit that is 
conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
and the applicable requirements prescribed in 45 CFR Part 75 Subpart F. HCHC 
must promptly follow up and take corrective action on audit findings, including 
preparation of a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action 
plan in accordance with 45 CFR 75.511Auditor procurement; 
In procuring audit services, the procurement standards prescribed under this 
policy must be adhered to, as applicable. When procuring audit services, the 
objective is to obtain high-quality audits. In requesting proposals for audit 
services, the objectives and scope of the audit must be made clear and HCHC 
must request a copy of the audit organization's peer review report which the 
auditor is required to provide under GAGAS. Factors to be considered in 
evaluating each proposal for audit services include the responsiveness to the 
request for proposal, relevant experience, availability of staff with professional 
qualifications and technical abilities, the results of peer and external quality 
control reviews, and price. Whenever possible, HCHC must make positive efforts 
to utilize small businesses, minority-owned firms, and women's business 
enterprises, in procuring audit services, as applicable. 

b) Restriction on auditor preparing indirect cost proposals. 
An auditor who prepares the indirect cost proposal or cost allocation plan may 
not also be selected to perform the audit required by this part when the indirect 
costs recovered by the auditee during the prior year exceeded $1 million. This 
restriction applies to the base year used in the preparation of the indirect cost 
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proposal or cost allocation plan and any subsequent years in which the resulting 
indirect cost agreement or cost allocation plan is used to recover costs. 

c) HCHC Board of Director involvement in selection of auditor;  
Annually the HCHC Board of Directors will review and appoint the Auditor based 
upon the procurement standards. 
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Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. 

 

Administration 

 

SUBJECT: NAME OF POLICY – SLIDING FEE DISCOUNT PROGRAM (SFDP) 

 

REGULATORY REFERENCE:  HRSA/BPHC [Public Health Service Act 330(k)(3)(G) of the 

PHS Act; and 42 CFR 51c 303(f), 42 CFR 51c.303(g), 42 CFR 51c.303(u), 42 CFR 56.303(f), 42 

CFR56.303(g) and 42 CFR 56.303(u) and Code of Federal Regulations – 42 CFR Part c.303(f)] 

 

Policy: 
To make available discount services to those in need. 

No patient will be denied health care services provided by HCHC due to an inability to pay or on 

the basis of age, gender, race, sexual orientation, creed, religion, disability, or national origin. 

 

Purpose:  
Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. (HCHC) Board of Directors have adopted this policy 

to make available a sliding fee discount program to ensure that no patient will be denied health 

care services provided by HCHC due to an inability to pay or on the basis of race, color, religion, 

creed, sex, gender, gender identity or gender expression, age, marital status, national origin, 

mental or physical disability, political belief or affiliation, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

genetic information, and any other class of individuals protected from discrimination under state 

or federal law with respect to the provision of services.  

 

This policy includes a formal documented process designed to provide free or discounted care 

to those who have no means, or limited means, to pay for their medical, optometry, behavioral 

health and dental services (Uninsured or Underinsured). The HCHC Navigators and the Billing 

Manager’s role under this policy is to act as a patient advocate, that is, one who works with the 

patient and/or guarantor to find reasonable payment alternatives.  

 

Discounts are offered based on family size and annual household income which is documented 

through the completion of the “Sliding Fee Discount Application”. 

 

The Sliding Fee Discount Program will only be made available for medical, dental, optometry 

and behavioral health clinic visits. Costs for items done outside the health centers (eg. 3rd party 

dental and optometry lab charges) are exempt from the sliding fee discounts and the actual cost 

will be charged to the patient (even patients at/below 100% FPG).  The professional services 

component of procedures  performed by HHC staff that involve lab charges or other 3rd part fees 

are subject to all sliding fee discount conditions and will be charged in accordance with the 

SFDP. Payment options and lab or separate eligible service costs will be discussed up front prior 

to services being provided and referenced in written documentation (eg, treatment plans). 

Sliding Fee Discounts are not available for Optometry and/or Dental hardware, such as dentures 

and eye glasses and not for those services or equipment that are purchased from outside, 
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including reference laboratory testing, drugs, and x-ray interpretation by a consulting radiologist, 

and other such services.  

 

 

The Federal Poverty Guidelines, http://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty, are used in creating and annually 

updating the sliding fee schedule (SFS) to determine eligibility.  

 

 

Procedure: The following guidelines are to be followed in providing the Sliding Fee Discount 

Program.  

1. Notification: HCHC will notify patients of the Sliding Fee Discount Program by: 

• Notification of Sliding Fee Discount Program in the clinic waiting area. 
• Notification of the Sliding Fee Discount Program will be offered to each patient upon 
registration as a patient of HCHC.  
• Notification of financial assistance on each invoice and collection notice sent out by 
HCHC.  
• An explanation of our Sliding Fee Discount Program and our application form are 
available on HCHC’s website.  
 

2. All patients seeking healthcare services at HCHC are assured that they will be served 

regardless of ability to pay. No one is refused service because of lack of financial means 

to pay.  

 

3. Request for discount: Requests for discounted services may be made by patients, family 

members, social services staff or others who are aware of existing financial hardship. 

The Sliding Fee Discount Program will only be made available for medical, dental, 

optometry and behavioral health clinic visits. Sliding Fee Discounts are not available for 

Optometry or Dental hardware and not for those services or equipment that are 

purchased from outside, including reference laboratory testing, drugs, and x-ray 

interpretation by a consulting radiologist, and other such services.  Information and 

forms can be obtained from the Front Desk, Billing Department and from Navigators. 

 

4. Administration: The Sliding Fee Discount Program procedure will be administered 

through the Finance Department / Billing Manager or their designee. Information about 

the Sliding Fee Discount Program policy and procedure will be provided and assistance 

offered for completion of the application with Navigators and /or the Billing Manager. 

Dignity will be respected and confidentiality maintained for all who seek and/or are 

provided charitable services. 

 

5. Alternative payment sources: All alternative payment resources must be exhausted, 

including all third-party payment from insurance(s) and Federal and State programs, 



including Health Safety Net (HSN). 

 

6.  Completion of Application: The patient/responsible party must complete the Sliding 

Fee Discount Program application in its entirety.  Every effort will be made to collect the 

required family income information in conjunction with any Mass Health and/or HSN 

applications. By signing the application, persons authorize HCHC access in confirming 

income as disclosed on the application form. Providing false information may result in 

the Sliding Fee Discount Program discounts being revoked and the full balance of the 

account(s) restored and payable under the HCHC Credit and Collection Policy.  

 

7. Eligibility: Sliding Fee Discounts will be based on income and family size only. HCHC uses 

the Census Bureau definitions of each.  

a. Family is defined as: a group of two people or more (one of whom is the head of 

household) related by birth, marriage, or adoption and residing together and any 

person who is claimed as a dependent for Federal tax purposes; all such people 

(including related subfamily members) are considered as members of one family.  

 

b. Income includes: earnings, unemployment compensation, workers' 

compensation, Social Security, veterans' payments, survivor benefits, pension or 

retirement income, interest, dividends, rents, royalties, income from estates, 

trusts, educational assistance, alimony, child support, assistance from outside 

the household, and other miscellaneous sources. Noncash benefits (such as 

SNAP benefits and housing subsidies) do not count as income.  

 

c. Income verification: Applicants must provide one of the following: prior year W-

2, prior year federal tax return (1040, etc.), two most recent pay stubs, letter 

from employer, or Form 4506-T (if W-2 not filed). Self-employed individuals will 

be required to submit detail of the most recent three months of income and 

expenses for the business and prior year Federal Form 1040 Schedule C. 

Adequate information must be made available to determine eligibility for the 

program. Self-declaration of Income may only be used in special circumstances. 

Specific examples include participants who are homeless. Patients who are 

unable to provide written verification must provide a signed statement of 

income, and why they are unable to provide independent verification. Self-

declared patients will be responsible for 100% of their charges until 

management determines the appropriate category.  

 

8. Discounts: Those with incomes at or below 100% of poverty will receive a full 100% 

discount. Those with incomes above 100% of poverty, but at or below 200% of poverty, 

will be charged according to the attached sliding fee schedule. The sliding fee discount 

schedule will be applied to any standard charges or any remaining charges after any 



insurance payment. The sliding fee schedule will be updated during the first quarter of 

every calendar year with the latest federal poverty guidelines (FPG), 

http://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty. 

 

9. Nominal Fee: Patients receiving a full discount will not be assessed a nominal charge 

per visit. 

 

10. Waiving or Reducing  Chargesof Charges: In certain situations, patients may not be able 

to pay the discount fee, regardless of the patient income levels.. Waiving of charges may 

only be used in special circumstances and must be approved by HCHC’s CEO, CFO, or 

their designee. Examples of such special circumstances may include, but are not limited 

to, displacement of current housing due to catastrophic events such as fires or water 

damage, auto/personal injuries, or as a victim of serious crimes. Any waiving or 

reduction of charges should be documented in the patient’s file along with an 

explanation (e.g., ability to pay, good will, health promotion event). 

 

11. Applicant notification: The Sliding Fee Discount Program determination will be provided 

to the applicant(s) in writing, and will include the percentage of Sliding Fee Discount 

Program write off, or, if applicable, the reason for denial. If the application is approved 

for less than a 100% discount or denied, the patient and/or responsible party must 

immediately establish payment arrangements with HCHC. Sliding Fee Discount Program 

applications cover outstanding patient balances for six months prior to application date 

and any balances incurred within 12 months after the approved date, unless their 

financial situation changes significantly. The applicant has the option to reapply after 

the 12 months have expired or anytime there has been a significant change in family 

income. When the applicant reapplies, the look back period will be the lesser of six 

months or the expiration of their last Sliding Fee Discount Program application. 

 

12.  Refusal to Pay: If a patient verbally expresses an unwillingness to pay or vacates the 

premises without paying for services, the patient will be contacted in writing regarding 

their payment obligations. If the patient is not on the sliding fee schedule, a copy of the 

sliding fee discount program application will be sent with the notice. If the patient does 

not make effort to pay or fails to respond within 60 days, this constitutes refusal to pay. 

At this point in time, HCHC can implement procedures under the HCHC Credit and 

Collection Policy. 

 

13. Record keeping: Information related to Sliding Fee Discount Program decisions will be 

maintained and preserved in a centralized confidential file located in the Billing 

Department Manager’s Office. 

 

http://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty


14. Policy and procedure review: Annually, all aspects of the SFDP will be reviewed, 

including the nominal fee from the perspective of the patient to ensure it does not 

create a financial barrier to care.  The SFDP will be reviewed by the CEO and/or CFO and 

presented to the Board of Directors for further review and approval. The review process 

will include a method to obtain feedback from patients. The Sliding Fee Scale will be 

updated based on the current Federal Poverty Guidelines. Pertinent information 

comparing amount budgeted and actual community care provided shall serve as a 

guideline for future budget planning. This will also serve as a discussion base for 

reviewing possible changes in our policy and procedures and for examining institutional 

practices which may serve as barriers preventing eligible patients from having access to 

our community care provisions. 

 

15. Referral contracts: All HCHC referral contracts must include a clause detailing that HCHC 

patients receive services on a discounted fee equal to or better than the SFDS criteria of 

the Health Center Program. If the referral provider offers the services discounted on a 

SFDS with income at or below 250% FPG, as long as health center patients at or below 

200% of the FPG receive a greater discount for these services than if the health center’s 

SFDS were applied to the referral provider’s fee schedule, and patients at or below 

100% of the FPG receive no charge or only a nominal charge for the services, the referral 

arrangement is in compliance.  

 

15.16. Budget: During the annual budget process, an estimated amount of Sliding Fee 

Discount Program service will be placed into the budget as a deduction from revenue. 

Board approval of Sliding Fee Discount Program will be sought as an integral part of the 

annual budget. 

 

 

Questions regarding this policy or any related procedure should be directed to the Chief 

Financial Officer at 413-238-4116 
 

Originally Drafted: JANUARY 2013 Reviewed or Revised: OCTOBER DECEMBER 2019 

 
Approved by Board of Directors, Date: September 28, 2016 

 

Approved by: 

Name: Eliza B. Lake Date: 10/10/201912/12/2019 

Eliza B. Lake/ 

Chief Executive Officer, HCHC 

 

 

 

Name: John Follet, MD         Date: 10/29/201912/12/2019   

John Follet, MD 



President, HCHC Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Procedure: The following guidelines are to be followed in providing the Sliding Fee Discount 

Program.  

16. Notification: HCHC will notify patients of the Sliding Fee Discount Program by: 

• Notification of Sliding Fee Discount Program in the clinic waiting area. 
• Notification of the Sliding Fee Discount Program will be offered to each patient upon 
registration as a patient of HCHC.  
• Notification of financial assistance on each invoice and collection notice sent out by 
HCHC.  
• An explanation of our Sliding Fee Discount Program and our application form are 
available on HCHC’s website.  
 



17. All patients seeking healthcare services at HCHC are assured that they will be served 

regardless of ability to pay. No one is refused service because of lack of financial means 

to pay.  

 

18. Request for discount: Requests for discounted services may be made by patients, family 

members, social services staff or others who are aware of existing financial hardship. 

The Sliding Fee Discount Program will only be made available for medical, dental, 

optometry and behavioral health clinic visits. Sliding Fee Discounts are not available for 

Optometry or Dental hardware and not for those services or equipment that are 

purchased from outside, including reference laboratory testing, drugs, and x-ray 

interpretation by a consulting radiologist, and other such services.  Information and 

forms can be obtained from the Front Desk, Billing Department and from Navigators. 

 

19. Administration: The Sliding Fee Discount Program procedure will be administered 

through the Finance Department / Billing Manager or their designee. Information about 

the Sliding Fee Discount Program policy and procedure will be provided and assistance 

offered for completion of the application with Navigators and /or the Billing Manager. 

Dignity will be respected and confidentiality maintained for all who seek and/or are 

provided charitable services. 

 

20. Alternative payment sources: All alternative payment resources must be exhausted, 

including all third-party payment from insurance(s) and Federal and State programs, 

including Health Safety Net (HSN). 

 

21.  Completion of Application: The patient/responsible party must complete the Sliding 

Fee Discount Program application in its entirety.  Every effort will be made to collect the 

required family income information in conjunction with any Mass Health and/or HSN 

applications. By signing the application, persons authorize HCHC access in confirming 

income as disclosed on the application form. Providing false information may result in 

the Sliding Fee Discount Program discounts being revoked and the full balance of the 

account(s) restored and payable under the HCHC Credit and Collection Policy.  

 

22. Eligibility: Sliding Fee Discounts will be based on income and family size only. HCHC uses 

the Census Bureau definitions of each.  

a. Family is defined as: a group of two people or more (one of whom is the head of 

household) related by birth, marriage, or adoption and residing together and any 

person who is claimed as a dependent for Federal tax purposes; all such people 

(including related subfamily members) are considered as members of one family.  

 

b. Income includes: earnings, unemployment compensation, workers' 

compensation, Social Security, veterans' payments, survivor benefits, pension or 



retirement income, interest, dividends, rents, royalties, income from estates, 

trusts, educational assistance, alimony, child support, assistance from outside 

the household, and other miscellaneous sources. Noncash benefits (such as 

SNAP benefits and housing subsidies) do not count as income.  

 

c. Income verification: Applicants must provide one of the following: prior year W-

2, prior year federal tax return (1040, etc.), two most recent pay stubs, letter 

from employer, or Form 4506-T (if W-2 not filed). Self-employed individuals will 

be required to submit detail of the most recent three months of income and 

expenses for the business and prior year Federal Form 1040 Schedule C. 

Adequate information must be made available to determine eligibility for the 

program. Self-declaration of Income may only be used in special circumstances. 

Specific examples include participants who are homeless. Patients who are 

unable to provide written verification must provide a signed statement of 

income, and why they are unable to provide independent verification. Self-

declared patients will be responsible for 100% of their charges until 

management determines the appropriate category.  

 

23. Discounts: Those with incomes at or below 100% of poverty will receive a full 100% 

discount. Those with incomes above 100% of poverty, but at or below 200% of poverty, 

will be charged according to the attached sliding fee schedule. The sliding fee discount 

schedule will be applied to any standard charges or any remaining charges after any 

insurance payment. The sliding fee schedule will be updated during the first quarter of 

every calendar year with the latest federal poverty guidelines (FPG), 

http://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty. 

 

24. Nominal Fee: Patients receiving a full discount will not be assessed a nominal charge 

per visit. 

 

25. Waiving of Charges: In certain situations, patients may not be able to pay the discount 

fee. Waiving of charges may only be used in special circumstances and must be 

approved by HCHC’s CEO, CFO, or their designee. Any waiving of charges should be 

documented in the patient’s file along with an explanation (e.g., ability to pay, good will, 

health promotion event). 

 

26. Applicant notification: The Sliding Fee Discount Program determination will be provided 

to the applicant(s) in writing, and will include the percentage of Sliding Fee Discount 

Program write off, or, if applicable, the reason for denial. If the application is approved 

for less than a 100% discount or denied, the patient and/or responsible party must 

immediately establish payment arrangements with HCHC. Sliding Fee Discount Program 

applications cover outstanding patient balances for six months prior to application date 



and any balances incurred within 12 months after the approved date, unless their 

financial situation changes significantly. The applicant has the option to reapply after 

the 12 months have expired or anytime there has been a significant change in family 

income. When the applicant reapplies, the look back period will be the lesser of six 

months or the expiration of their last Sliding Fee Discount Program application. 

 

27.  Refusal to Pay: If a patient verbally expresses an unwillingness to pay or vacates the 

premises without paying for services, the patient will be contacted in writing regarding 

their payment obligations. If the patient is not on the sliding fee schedule, a copy of the 

sliding fee discount program application will be sent with the notice. If the patient does 

not make effort to pay or fails to respond within 60 days, this constitutes refusal to pay. 

At this point in time, HCHC can implement procedures under the HCHC Credit and 

Collection Policy. 

 

28. Record keeping: Information related to Sliding Fee Discount Program decisions will be 

maintained and preserved in a centralized confidential file located in the Billing 

Department Manager’s Office. 

 

29. Policy and procedure review: Annually, all aspects of the SFDP will be reviewed, 

including the nominal fee from the perspective of the patient to ensure it does not 

create a financial barrier to care.  The SFDP will be reviewed by the CEO and/or CFO and 

presented to the Board of Directors for further review and approval. The review process 

will include a method to obtain feedback from patients. The Sliding Fee Scale will be 

updated based on the current Federal Poverty Guidelines. Pertinent information 

comparing amount budgeted and actual community care provided shall serve as a 

guideline for future budget planning. This will also serve as a discussion base for 

reviewing possible changes in our policy and procedures and for examining institutional 

practices which may serve as barriers preventing eligible patients from having access to 

our community care provisions. 

30. Referral contracts: All HCHC referral contracts must include a clause detailing that HCHC 

patients receive services on a discounted fee equal to or better than the SFDS criteria of 

the Health Center Program. If the referral provider offers the services discounted on a 

SFDS with income at or below 250% FPG, as long as health center patients at or below 

200% of the FPG receive a greater discount for these services than if the health center’s 

SFDS were applied to the referral provider’s fee schedule, and patients at or below 

100% of the FPG receive no charge or only a nominal charge for the services, the referral 

arrangement is in compliance.  
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Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. 
 
 
 

Sliding Fee Discount Application 
 
 

It is the policy of Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. (HCHC), to make available a 

sliding fee discount program to ensure that no patient will be denied health care services 

provided by HCHC due to an inability to pay or on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, 

gender, gender identity or gender expression, age, marital status, national origin, mental or 

physical disability, political belief or affiliation, veteran status, sexual orientation, genetic 

information, and any other class of individuals protected from discrimination under state or 

federal law with respect to the provision of services. Discounts are offered based on family 

size and annual household income. Please complete the following information to determine if 

you or members of your family are eligible for a discount. 
 

The Sliding Fee Discount Program will only be made available for medical, dental, optometry and 

behavioral health clinic visits. Costs for items done outside the health centers (eg. 3rd party dental 

and optometry lab charges) are exempt from the sliding fee discounts and the actual cost will be 

charged to the patient (even patients at/below 100% FPG).  The professional services component of 

procedures performed by HHC staff that involve lab charges or other 3rd part fees are subject to all 

sliding fee discount conditions and will be charged in accordance with the SFDP. Payment options 

and lab or separate eligible service costs will be discussed up front prior to services being provided 

and referenced in written documentation (eg, treatment plans). 

Sliding Fee Discounts are not available for Optometry and/or Dental hardware, such as dentures 

and eye glasses and not for those services or equipment that are purchased from outside, 

including reference laboratory testing, drugs, and x-ray interpretation by a consulting 

radiologist, and other such services. This form must be completed every 12 months or if your 

financial situation changes. 
 

If you have questions or need assistance completing this form please contact an HCHC 

Navigators at 413-667-2203 or the Billing Manager at 413-238-4114. 
 

 

HOUSEHOLD/FAMILY INFORMATION 
 

Family is defined as: a group of two people or more (one of whom is the head of household) 

related by birth, marriage, or adoption and residing together and any person who is claimed as a 

dependent for Federal tax purposes; all such people (including related subfamily members) are 

considered as members of one family. 
 
 

PATIENT NAME :  



2  

RELATIONSHIP TO 
HEAD OF HOUSEHOLD: 

 

HOUSEHOLD MAILING 
ADDRESS: 

 

PHONE NUMBER:  



3 

Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. Sliding Fee Discount Application  

 

 
 

Defined Family Living at Household Address: 
 

Name: Date of Birth: Relationship 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 

Annual Household Income: 
 

Income Source: Self Other Family 

Member(s) 

Total 

Gross Wages, salaries, tips, etc.    

Income from business and self- 
employment. 

   

Unemployment compensation, 
workers' compensation, Social 

Security, Supplemental Security 

Income, veterans' payments, survivor 

benefits, pension or retirement 

income. 

   

Interest, dividends, rents, royalties, 
income from estates, trusts, 

educational assistance, alimony, child 

support, assistance from outside the 

household, and other miscellaneous 

sources. 

   

 
Total 
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Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc. Sliding Fee Discount Application  

 

 
 

NOTE: Please attach copies of all documents or self-declaration statements being used to verify 

income. 
 

I certify that the family size and income information shown above is correct. 

Name (Print): 

Signature: Date: 
 

 
 
 
 

Official Use Only 
 
 
 

Patient Name: 

Approved Discount: 

Approved By: 

Date Approved: 

List of Documents used to verify Income, please attach copy; 
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